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To Our Shareholders

2012 was year of solid improvement in your Companys

operating performance All three divisions upholstery

wood and corporate retail were able to post sales gains

and higher operating profits Operating income after

restructuring charges improved to $5.1 million Net

income was $26.7 million which included two unusual

items that will be discussed later in this report We believe

that our strategic plan is sound and we look forward to

generating additional growth and profitability in 2013

Consolidated net sales for 2012 amounted to

$269700000 compared to $253200000 in 2011 an

increase of 6.5% As mentioned last year we believe

that taking market share to improve our top line sales

is crucial to leveraging our operating expenses and

producing the financial results for which we strive As the

year progressed our sales momentum continued to grow

and results improved Wholesale sales for 2012 were

$185200000 4.4% higher than last year Interestingly

all of this growth occurred in the fourth quarter As

you know Bassett Home Furnishings BHF stores our

largest sales channel have been through tumultuous

few years during the housing bust Symptomatic of this

struggle has been the takeover of licensee owned retail

operations and the outright closing of many stores In

2012 we finally came through this period of upheaval

Although we did close five more stores three new ones

were opened Three stores were also acquired and at year

end we had 86 locations in the network compared to 88

last year We do not anticipate material number of store

closings or takeovers in the future Wholesale shipments

to our stores were only up 1% for the year but grew by

11% for the fourth quarter signifying the stabilization

of our network At year end 53 stores were Company-

owned and operated and the remaining 33 stores were

licensed locations We believe that the stronger platform

that is now in place can grow the Company as new stores

open in the future

Wholesale shipments to retailers outside of the BHF store

network grew by 10% in 2012 As previously noted we

believe meaningful opportunity exists for market share

gains in geographic areas that are not in conflict with our

stores and these efforts continue to bear fruit

new wholesale showroom at the WMC in Las Vegas Also

several new wholesale sales representatives joined Bassett

during the year In 2013 we plan to open Midwest

wholesale distribution center in Indianapolis expand our

showroom at the IHFC in High Point and add more sales

representatives

Our corporate store operations continued to exhibit the

trend of enhanced performance in 2012 that has been in

place the past few years In addition to reducing store

operating losses by 54% the division turned in 9%

annual comparable store sales increase the best in recent

memory In the fourth quarter the achievement of 15%

comparable sales was outstanding Total corporate retail

sales in fiscal 2012 came in at $171600000 representing

16% growth rate The combination of strong product

assortment good looking stores highly trained designers

effective marketing programs and superior levels of

customer service has matured our proposition into

unique experience in our industry that is resonating with

consumers In 2013 we look forward to opening five to

seven new stores and repositioning two others into better

retail locations Finally we will test new small store

concept designed to better highlight our industry leading

custom upholstery capabilities

Our manufacturing and wholesale sourcing operations

both benefited from the retail and open market sales

growth just referenced Total upholstery sales were

$106800000 7% increase Updates to our CU2

custom program and the development of our offshore

cut and sew capabilities were difference makers The

work schedules in our Newton NC manufacturing facility

were as robust as they have been in years particularly

during the last four months of the year This allowed the

upholstery division to increase annual operating profits

by 8% Our wood division had more modest growth

in revenue and divisional operating profits but were

positive nonetheless The contemporary Cosmopolitan

collection was particularly successful We also enjoyed

the rejuvenation of the formal dining room category one

that has been particularly tough in recent years

As you know the Company has entered into licensing

agreement with The Scripps Networks Home and Garden

Television HGTV network The first nine months of 2012Augmenting this initiative in 2012 was the opening of



involved tremendous amount of development time

for our open market retail store planning and product

development organizations in the creation of new

products retail point of purchase materials and print and

electronic advertising creative development Over the

course of the summer we transformed the design centers

in our BHF stores to the HGTV HOME Design Studio at

Bassett The concept debuted on HGTV national cable

television this past Labor Day weekend Designed to

emphasize our unique home makeover capabilities the

marketing campaign drove dramatic increases in our HGTV

HOME Design Studio custom upholstery products which

was partially responsible for the exciting fourth quarter

comparable store sales number mentioned earlier On the

open market front we opened an HGTV HOME product

showroom in April Targeted to Top 100 and other

substantial independent furniture retailers the HGTV

HOME open market line has begun to hit floors and will

be formally launched in national television promotion

with all HGTV partners in March We look forward to

realizing the full potential of this important effort in the

years to come

As mentioned there were two unusual items that weighed

positively on our income statement in 2012 We received

the final distribution resulting from the CDSOA Byrd

amendment in April amounting to $9.0 million The

money from this distribution is being challenged at the

U.S Court of Appeals for the Federal circuit by competitors

who claim that they are actually entitled to these funds

Depending on the outcome there could potentially be

claw back from this 2012 distribution We also realized

an $18.7 million tax benefit that significantly enhanced

our bottom line This represented the re-establishment

of certain deferred tax assets the estimated tax benefit of

deductions which we expect to take on future tax returns

that were previously written-off in 2008 With the current

level of profitability and the prospects for improved future

profitability we believe that these assets will ultimately be

realized as these deductions offset future taxable income

reducing our future cash tax payments

Your Board of Directors spent extra time in 2012

deliberating the best course of action in regards to Bassetts

capital allocation strategy In January special dividend

of $50/share was paid to shareholders in addition to the

announcement of an increase of the quarterly dividend

to the current $.05/share With the amount of liquidity

remaining on the balance sheet and the uncertainty

surrounding future tax rates in mind second special

dividend of $1.25/share was paid to shareholders in

October Additionally the Company purchased 644395

shares in the open market or 5.7% of the total shares

outstanding at the beginning of 2012 All in all it was

good year to own Bassett stock as more than $28 million

was returned to shareholders in the form of dividends and

share repurchases

The past few
years

have made the direct relationship

between the general economy and our industry painfully

apparent Furthermore the inability of Washington to

intelligently address our escalating national deficit is

source of deep concern for all reasonable Americans With

those two caveats in mind we do feel more confident

about the future prospects for our business than we have

in some time We certainly feel better about our Bassett

Home Furnishings stores than ever although we still have

room to improve Several first generation stores will be

relocated over the next few years which should really help

We now know that smaller store can generate similar

sales to some of the original bigger ones with substantially

lower operating costs We look forward to implementing

these relocations and improving profitability And we are

equally excited about the prospects for independent retail

growth that we have before us We have strengthened

our sales organization and have the product breadth

logistics capabilities and financial strength to become

key supplier to major independents that we are not

currently selling

In closing would like to thank our Shareholders our

Board members our customers and our suppliers for

their support of Bassett in 2012 Finally look forward

to the journey in 2013 and beyond with our 1400 Bassett

associates

Robert SpilmanJr

President CEO



Fiscal Years Ended November

2012 2011 20I0

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Net Sales $269672 $253.208 S235.254

Net Income Loss 26.713 55.342 2.002

PER SHARE DATA

DilLited Income Loss 2.41 4.79 0.17

Cash Dividends Per Share .45

Book Value Per Share 14.51 13.44 20

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Cash Cash Equivalents 45566 i9.601 11071

Investments 3745 15.111

lotal Assets 227180 223.174 97.3 17

Long-Term Debt 3.053 3662 4.295

Stockholders Equity 157280 152435 06.305
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Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and per
share data

Overview

Bassett is leading retailer manufacturer and marketer of branded home furnishings Our products are sold primarily

through network of Company-owned and licensee-owned branded stores under the Bassett Home Furnishings

BHF name with additional distribution through other wholesale channels including multi-line furniture stores many

of which feature Bassett galleries or design centers specialty stores and mass merchants We were founded in 1902 and

incorporated under the laws of Virginia in 1930 Our rich 110-year history has instilled the principles of quality value

and integrity in everything that we do while simultaneously providing us with the expertise to respond to ever-changing

consumer tastes and to meet the demands of global economy

With 86 BHF stores at November 24 2012 we have leveraged our strong brand name in furniture into network of

corporate and licensed stores that focus on providing consumers with friendly environment for buying furniture and

accessories We created our store program in 1997 to provide single source home furnishings retail store that provides

unique combination of stylish quality furniture and accessories with high level of customer service The store

features custom order furniture ready for delivery in less than 30 days more than 1000 upholstery fabrics free in-home

design visits and coordinated decorating accessories We believe that our capabilities in custom furniture have become

unmatched in recent years
Our manufacturing team takes great pride in the breadth of its options the precision of its

craftsmanship and the speed of its delivery The selling philosophy in the stores is based on building strong long term

relationships with each customer Sales people are referred to as Design Consultants and are each trained to evaluate

customer needs and provide comprehensive solutions for their home decor We continue to strengthen the sales and

design talent within our Company-owned retail stores During 2011 our Design Consultants completed extensive

Design Certification training coursework This coursework has strengthened their skills related to our house call and

design business and is intended to increase business with our most valuable customers

In order to reach markets that cannot be effectively served by our retail store network we also distribute our products

through other wholesale channels including multi-line furniture stores many of which feature Bassett galleries or design

centers specialty stores and mass merchants We believe this blended strategy provides us the greatest ability to

effectively distribute our products throughout the United States and ultimately gain market share

In September of 2011 we announced the formation of strategic partnership with HGTV division of Scripps

Networks LLC which combines our 110 year heritage in the furniture industry with the penetration of 99 million

households in the United States that HGTV enjoys today This alliance encompasses strategies for both the BHF store

network and other open market sales channels For the store network the in-store design centers have been co-branded

with HGTV to more forcefully market the concept of home makeover an important point of differentiation for our

stores that also mirrors much of the programming content on the HGTV network In addition we have developed in

conjunction with HGTV new line of furniture that contains only the HGTV Home Collection brand and will be

primarily marketed through select top-lOO furniture retailers in phased approach Shipments of floor samples for phase

were completed in January 2013 for 13 retailers with over 50 floors Floor sample shipments for phase II dealers will

begin in February with completion by April 2013 Phase III will begin later in 2013

Our store network included 53 Company-owned and operated stores and 33 licensee-owned stores at November 24

2012 During fiscal 2012 we opened two new stores one in Torrance California in the Los Angeles market and one in

Paramus New Jersey in the New York City/Bergen County market and we acquired three stores one store from

licensee in Knoxville Tennessee and two from licensee in Orange County California We also relocated store

within the Richmond Virginia market closing the previous location in Glen Allen Virginia and opening the new

location in Short Pump Virginia One additional store located in Austin Texas was closed during the second quarter of

2012 In December 2012 new licensee-owned store was opened in San Jose California

The following table summarizes the changes in store count during fiscal 2012

Company-owned stores

Licensee-owned stores

Total

November 26 2011 Openings Closed Transfers November 24 2012

49 53

39 33

88 86



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and per share data

Our wholesale operations include an upholstery plant in Newton North Carolina that produces wide range of

upholstered furniture We believe that we are an industry leader with our quick-ship custom upholstery offerings We
also operate custom dining manufacturing facility in Martinsville Va Most of our wood furniture and certain of our

upholstery offerings are sourced through several foreign plants primarily in Vietnam and Indonesia We define

imported product as fully finished product that is sourced internationally For fiscal 2012 approximately 50% of our

wholesale sales were of imported product compared to 52% for fiscal 2011

Traffic to our website www.bassettfurniture.com continues to grow The ultimate goal of our digital strategy is to drive

traffic to our retailers while deepening interactions with our consumers Understanding that more and more consumers

are using the web to research before making purchase we have worked diligently to enhance our online
presence by

making it easier for consumers to browse our wide array of goods and build custom furniture In 2013 we will continue

to make improvements to our website and increase our social media
presence to drive more visitors to our website and

more qualified prospects to our stores While sales through our website are currently not material they have increased

significantly in the last several years We are leveraging our Company-owned and licensed store network to handle

delivery and customer service for orders placed online

Although overall conditions for our industry and our Company have been difficult over the past several years there has

been improvement during the last year Housing starts which our industry tracks as key leading economic indicator

have been steadily improving for several quarters although they still remain well below pre-recession levels Consumers

continue to be faced with general economic uncertainty fueled by continuing high unemployment and uncertain fiscal

policy These conditions have limited the resumption of growth for big ticket consumer purchases such as furniture

Consequently this put pressure on certain of our dealers ability to generate adequate profits to fully pay us for the

furniture we have sold to them As result prior to 2012 we incurred significant bad debt and notes receivable

valuation charges Beginning during the second half of 2011 and continuing into 2012 this trend improved significantly

as we only incurred bad debt charges of $376 for fiscal 2012 compared with $13490 and $6567 for fiscal 2011 and

2010 respectively reflecting improved credit positions with our current fleet of licensees We believe that the current

level of bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges during fiscal 2012 is more indicative of the expected trend of

future charges Although management will continue to work closely with our licensees to ensure the success of both the

licensee and Bassett further store closures are possible should any licensees experience severe deteriorations in their

credit positions from which we believe they are unlikely to recover



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and
per

share data

Analysis of Operations

Our fiscal
year

ends on the last Saturday of November which periodically results in 53-week year Fiscal 2012 2011

and 2010 each contained 52 weeks Net sales gross profit selling general and administrative SGA expense and

operating income loss were as follows for the years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27

2010

2012 2011 2010

Net sales 269672 100.0% 253208 100.0% 235254 100.0%

Grossprofit 141322 52.4% 127566 50.4% 112688 47.9%

SGA 134796 50.0% 122023 48.2% 110808 47.1%

Bad debt and notes receivable

valuation charges 376 0.1% 13490 5.3% 6567 2.8%

Other charges 1070 0.4% 12675 5.0% 0.0%

Income loss from operations 5080 1.9% 20622 -8.1% 4687 -2.0%

Sales for fiscal 2012 were $269672 as compared to $253208 for 2011 and $235254 for 2010 representing increases of

6.5% and 7.6% respectively This trend primarily reflects the increase in the number of stores owned and operated by

us as well as growth in our wholesale shipments outside of our licensee network Our consolidated net sales by segment

were as follows

2012 2011 2010

Wholesale 185187 177372 176255

Retail 171633 147961 122241

Inter-company elimination 87148 72125 63242

Consolidated net sales 269672 253208 235254

Gross margins for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 were 52.4% 50.4% and 47.9% respectively The margin increases are

primarily attributable to additional retail markup realized as the result of the continued expansion of our Company-

owned store network in our retail segment Selling general and administrative expenses excluding bad debt and notes

receivable valuation charges increased $12773 in 2012 as compared to 2011 and increased $11215 in 2011 as

compared to 2010 primarily due to the increase in the number of Company-owned retail stores as each additional store

opening or acquisition results in incremental fixed overhead costs primarily associated with local store personnel

occupancy costs and warehousing expenses The incremental SGA expenses associated with each new store will be

ongoing In addition wholesale SGA increased in 2012 over 2011 primarily due to spending associated with the

development of our HGTV initiative Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges for fiscal 2012 decreased from the

prior year by $13114 reflecting the improved credit positions of our current fleet of licensees whereas bad debt and

notes receivable valuation charges had increased $6923 in 2011 from 2010 levels This increase reflected the continued

deterioration of certain of our licensees during the first half of 2011 As result we acquired nine stores from four

licensees and closed six stores with three other licensees during fiscal 2011 Following the takeover or closure of these

troubled licensee-owned stores our bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges have averaged approximately $140

per quarter since the third quarter of 2011 We believe that this average
level of bad debt and notes receivable valuation

charges is more indicative of the expected trend of future charges

Certain items affecting comparability between periods are noted below in Investment and Real Estate Segment and

Other Items Affecting Net Loss



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and per share data

The following table presents certain significant items that have negatively impacted our results of operations We believe

these items should be presented separately in order to understand and evaluate our results and trends See note 16 of our

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding these charges

Restructuring and impaired asset charges

Impairment of leasehold improvements

Asset impairment charge associated with closed plants

Severance other restructuring

Lease exit costs

Licensee debt cancellation charges

Segment Information

2012 2011 2010

123 1156

588 1312

32

359 3728

6447

1070 12675

We have strategically aligned our business into three reportable segments as described below

Wholesale The wholesale home furnishings segment is involved principally in the design manufacture

sourcing sale and distribution of furniture products to network of Bassett stores Company-owned and

licensee-owned retail stores and independent furniture retailers Our wholesale segment includes our wood and

upholstery operations as well as all corporate selling general and administrative expenses including those

corporate expenses
related to both Company- and licensee-owned stores We eliminate the sales between our

wholesale and retail segments as well as the imbedded profit in the retail inventory for the consolidated

presentation in our financial statements

Retail Company-owned Stores Our retail segment consists of Company-owned stores and includes the

revenues expenses assets and liabilities including real estate and capital expenditures directly related to these

stores

Investments and Real Estate Our investments/real estate business segment consists of our holdings of retail

real estate leased or previously leased as licensee stores the equity investment in Zenith Freight Lines LLC

Zenith which hauls freight and warehouses inventory for the Company and International Home

Furnishings Center Inc Il-IFC until sold on May 2011 We also hold an interest in the Fortress Value

Recovery Fund LLC Fortress which we fully reserved during fiscal 2012 We formerly held portfolio

of marketable securities which we liquidated during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 Although this segment

does not have operating earnings income from the segment is included in other income loss net in our

consolidated statements of operations

The following tables illustrate the effects of various intercompany eliminations on income loss from operations in the

consolidation of our segment results

Net sales

Gross profit

SGA expense

Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

Income loss from operations

Year Ended November 24 2012

Wholesale Retail Eliminations Consolidated

185187 171633 87l48l 269672

59817 82361 8562 141322

51941 84428 l5733 134796

376 376

7500 2067 717 6150



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and
per

share data

Net sales

Gross profit

SGA expense

Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

Income loss from operations

Net sales

Gross profit

SGA expense

Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

Income loss from operations

Year Ended November 26 201

Wholesale Retail Eliminations Consolidated

177372 147961 721251 253208

57804 69862 l002 127566

48708 74357 10423 122023

13490 13490

4394 4495 942 7947

Year Ended November 27 2010

Wholesale Retail Eliminations Consolidated

176255 122241 632421 235254

55010 58628 9502 112688

46012 66015 l2193 110808

6567 6567

2431 7387 269 4687

Represents the elimination of sales from our wholesale segment to our Company-owned BHF stores

Represents the change for the period in the elimination of intercompany profit in ending retail inventory

Represents the elimination of rent charged to our retail stores occupying Company-owned real estate

Excludes the effects of restructuring and impairment charges lease exit costs and with respect to the 2011 period

licensee debt cancellation charges These charges are not allocated to our segments

Wholesale Segment

Net sales gross profit selling general and administrative SGA expense and operating income loss for our

Wholesale Segment were as follows for the years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27

2010

Net sales

Gross profit

SGA
Bad debt and notes receivable

valuation charges

Income loss from operations

0.2% 13490

4.0% 4394

7.6% 6567

-2.5% 2431

3.7%

1.4%

Wholesale shipments by category for the last three fiscal years are summarized below

2011 2010

2012 2011 2010

185187

59817

51941

376

7500

100.0%

32.3%

28.0%

177372

57804

48708

100.0%

32.6%

27.5%

176255

55010

46012

100.0%

31.2%

26.1%

2012

Wood

Upholstery

Other

Total

78194

105377

1616

185187

42.2% 77410 43.6% 77326 43.9%

56.9% 98577 55.6% 97258 55.2%

0.9% 1385 0.8% 1671 0.9%

100.0% 177372 100.0% 176255 100.0%



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and per share data

Fiscal 2012 as Compared to Fiscal 2011

Net sales for the wholesale segment were $185187 for 2012 as compared to $177372 for 2011 an increase of

4.4% Wholesale shipments to the BHF store network increased 0.7% while shipments outside of the network increased

15.4% The slight increase in sales to the store network came in spite of decline in the total number of BHF stores The
increase in the wholesale shipments outside the network was primarily due to an 18% increase in the traditional channel

partially offset by lower shipments to significant national account customer

Gross margins for the wholesale segment were 32.3% for 2012 down slightly from the gross margin of 32.6% for 2011

Wholesale SGA excluding bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges increased $3233 to $51941 for 2012 as

compared to $48708 for 2011 As percentage of net sales SGA increased 0.5 percentage points to 28.0% for 2012

as compared to 27.5% for 2011 This increase was primarily due to incremental marketing spend of $1478 associated

with the development of the HGTV initiative and temporary showroom in High Point to display the new I-IGTV

furniture This increase was partially offset by improved leverage of fixed costs associated with higher sales We
recorded $376 of bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges during 2012 as compared with $13490 for 2011
which reflects the improved credit positions with our current fleet of licensees The bad debt and notes receivable

valuation charges which we have experienced since the third quarter of 2011 have averaged approximately $140 per

quarter We believe that this
average

level of bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges is more indicative of the

expected trend of future charges

Fiscal 2011 as Compared to Fiscal 2010

Net sales for the wholesale segment were $177372 for 2011 as compared to $176255 for 2010 an increase of

0.6% Reductions in wholesale sales due to 13 fewer stores in the network were offset by 10.5% increase in sales

through other channels

Gross margins for the wholesale segment were 32.6% for 2011 as compared to 31.2% for 2010 This increase was

primarily due to lower promotional discounts and improved margins in our wood operations largely from reduced

container freight costs Wholesale SGA excluding bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges increased $2696

to $48708 for 2011 as compared to $46012 for 2010 As percentage of net sales SGA increased 1.4 percentage

points to 27.5% for 2011 as compared to 26.1% for 2010 This increase was primarily due to higher sales and marketing

costs including costs to prepare
for the launch of the HGTV product line We recorded $13490 of bad debt and notes

receivable valuation charges for 2011 as compared with $6567 for 2010 This increase reflected the continued

deterioration of certain of our licensees during 2011 As result we acquired nine and closed six licensee-owned stores

during 2011

Wholesale Backlog

The dollar value of our wholesale backlog representing orders received but not yet delivered to dealers and Company
stores as of November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 28 2009 was as follows

Year end wholesale backlog

2012 2011 2010

11988 10325 12451



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and per share data

Retail Segment Company Owned Stores

Net sales gross profit selling general and administrative SGA expense and operating loss for our Retail Segment

were as follows for the years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010

2012 2011 2010

Net sales 171633 100.0% 147961 100.0% 122241 100.0%

Gross profit 82361 48.0% 69862 47.2% 58628 48.0%

SOA 84428 49.2% 74357 50.3% 66015 54.0%

Loss from operations 2067 -1.2% 4495 -3.0% 7387 -6.0%

The following tables present operating results on comparable store basis for each comparative set of periods Table

compares the results of the 40 stores that were open and operating for all of 2012 and 2011 Table compares the

results of the 32 stores that were open and operating for all of 2011 and 2010

Comparable Store Results

Table 2012 vs 201140 Stores Table 2011 vs 2010 32 Stores

2012 2011 2011 2010

Netsales $140345 100.0% $128580 100.0% 99924 100.0% 95342 100.0%

Gross profit 67875 48.4% 62180 48.4% 48366 48.4% 46567 48.8%

SGA expense 67835 48.3% 64191 49.9% 50429 50.5% 49993 52.4%

Income loss from

operations 40 0.0% 2011 -1.6% 2063 -2.1% 3426 -3.6%

The following tables present operating results for all other stores which were not comparable year-over-year each table

including the results of stores that either opened or closed at some point during the 24 months of each comparative set of

periods

All Other Non-Comparable Store Results

2012 vs 2011 All Other Stores 2011 vs 2010 All Other Stores

2012 2011 2011 2010

Net sales 31288 100.0% 19381 100.0% 48037 100.0% 26899 100.0%

Gross profit 14486 46.3% 7682 39.6% 21496 44.7% 12061 44.8%

SGA expense 16593 53.0% 10166 52.5% 23928 49.8% 16022 59.6%

Loss from operations 2107 -6.7% 2484 -12.8% 2432 -5.1% 3961 -14.7%

Fiscal 2012 as Compared to Fiscal 2011

Our Company-owned stores had sales of $171633 in fiscal 2012 as compared to $147961 in fiscal 2011 an increase of

16.0% The increase was comprised of an $11765 or 9.1% increase in comparable store sales along with an $11907

increase in non-comparable store sales Contributing to the improvement in comparable store sales were the successful

introduction of new products during the second half of 2012 improved merchandising in our stores and improvements in

the quality and training of the design associates who sell our products In addition general improvement in the retail

environment in combination with targeted advertising also produced increased traffic through our stores While we do

not recognize sales until goods are delivered to the customer our management tracks written sales the dollar value of

sales orders taken rather than delivered as key store performance indicator Written sales for comparable stores

increased by 10.6% for fiscal 2012 as compared to fiscal 2011
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In thousands except share and per share data

Gross margins for fiscal 2012 increased 0.8 percentage points to 48.0% as compared to fiscal 2011 due primarily to the

adverse impact of store liquidation sales run during 2011 related to the closure of seven retail locations This increase in

margins was also attributable in part to improved pricing strategies and increased sales of higher margin mattresses

SGA increased $10071 primarily due to increased store count as each additional store opening or acquisition results

in incremental fixed overhead costs primarily associated with local store personnel occupancy costs and warehousing

expenses The incremental SGA expenses associated with each new store will be ongoing On comparable store

basis SGA as percentage of sales decreased 1.1 percentage points to 49.2% for fiscal 2012 as compared to the fiscal

2011 due to increased sales leveraging fixed costs and improved operating efficiencies Comparable stores had

operating income of $40 for fiscal 2012 essentially breaking even for the first time on an annual basis as compared to

loss of$2011 or 1.6% of sales for fiscal 2011 In all other stores the operating loss was $2107 or 6.7% of sales for

fiscal 2012 as compared to $2432 or 5.1% of sales for fiscal 2011

Fiscal 2011 as Compared to Fiscal 2010

Our Company-owned stores had sales of $147961 in 2011 as compared to $122241 in 2010 an increase of 21.0% The

increase was comprised of $21138 increase primarily from additional Company-owned stores and $4582 or 4.8%
increase in comparable store sales While we do not recognize sales until goods are delivered to the customer we track

written sales the dollar value of sales orders taken rather than delivered as key store performance indicator Written

sales for comparable stores increased by 2.9% in 2011 over 2010

Gross margins for 2011 decreased 0.8 percentage points to 47.2% as compared to 2010 due primarily to lower margins

from the store liquidation sales at the seven stores closed as well as slightly lower margins from comparable

stores SGA increased $8342 primarily due to increased store count On comparable store basis SGA decreased

1.9 percentage points to 50.5% for 2011 as compared to 2010 due to increased sales leveraging fixed costs and improved

operating efficiencies Operating losses for the comparable stores decreased by $1363 to $2063 or 2.1% of sales In

all other stores the operating loss was $2432 or 5.1% of sales This higher level of operating losses reflects the fact that

the acquired stores were struggling or failing at the time of acquisition It has generally taken six to twelve months of

operations by corporate retail management to either implement the changes necessary to improve performance in the

acquired stores or to make final determination regarding their on-going viability

Retail Comparable Store Sales Increases Decreases

Delivered Written

Fiscal 2012 9.1% 10.6%

Fiscal 2011 4.8% 2.9%

Fiscal 2010 -4.7% -1.3%

Retail Backlog

The dollar value of our retail backlog representing orders received but not yet delivered to customers as of November

24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010 was as follows

2012 2011 2010

Year end retail backlog 18180 14101 13689

Retail backlog per open store 343 288 291
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Investment and Real Estate Segment and Other Items Affecting Net Income Loss

At November 24 2012 our investments and real estate segment consists of our equity investment in Zenith and our

investments in retail real estate related to current and former licensee stores Previously this segment had also included

our investments in marketable securities which were liquidated during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 our investment

in the Fortress Value Recovery Fund LLC Fortress which was fully impaired during the first quarter of fiscal

2012 and our equity investment in IHFC sold during the second quarter of fiscal 2011 Although this segment does

not have operating earnings income or loss from the segment is included in other income in our consolidated statements

of operations Our equity investment in IHFC was not included in the identifiable assets of this segment at November 27

2010 since it had negative book value and was therefore included in the long-term liabilities section of our

consolidated balance sheet As more fully discussed under Liquidity and Capital Resources below our entire

investment in IHFC was sold during the second quarter of 2011 resulting in gain of $85542

We own 49% of Zenith Freight Lines LLC Zenith which provides domestic transportation and warehousing

services primarily to furniture manufacturers and distributors and also provides home delivery services to furniture

retailers We have contracted with Zenith to provide for substantially all of our domestic freight transportation and

warehousing needs for the wholesale business In addition Zenith provides home delivery services for several of our

Company-owned retail stores We believe our partnership with Zenith allows us to focus on our core competencies of

manufacturing and marketing home furnishings Zenith focuses on offering Bassett customers best-of-class service and

handling We consider the expertise that Zenith exhibits in logistics to be significant competitive advantage for us In

addition we believe that Zenith is well positioned to take advantage of current growth opportunities for providing

logistical services to the furniture industry At November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 our investment in Zenith

was $6484 and $6137 respectively During the second quarter of fiscal 2011 we made an additional cash investment

of $980 which represented our 49% share of total $2000 equity contribution to Zenith to partially fund its acquisition

of warehouse facility
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Investment and real estate income loss and other items affecting net income loss for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 are as

follows

2012 2011 2010

Gain on sale of IHFC 85542

Income from unconsolidated affiliated companies net 347 1840 4700

Income from Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act 9010 765 488

Gain on sale of equity securities 2024
Other than temporary impairment of investments 806
Interest expense 295 912 1994
Retail real estate impairment charges 3953
Lease exit costs 837
Loan and lease guarantee expense recovery 41 1282 1407
Gain on mortgage settlements 1305

Other 1363 2095 1332

Total income 6934 80373 2479

See note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information related to our gain on the sale of IHFC as

well as information related to our income from unconsolidated affiliated companies

See note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information related to our income from the Continued

Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act CDSOA
Represents the gain realized upon the completion of the liquidation of our portfolio of marketable equity

securities during the first quarter of fiscal 2010 This liquidation had been initiated during fiscal 2009

Represents the full impairment of our investment in Fortress See note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information

Our interest
expense

consists primarily of interest on our retail real estate mortgage obligations This expense

has been declining steadily as those obligations have been repaid

See note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information related to impairment charges

and lease exit costs related to our retail real estate

Loan and lease guarantee expense consists of adjustments to our reserves for the net amount of our estimated

losses on loan and lease guarantees that we have entered into on behalf of our licensees The recovery expense

recognized for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 reflects the changes in our estimates of the additional risk that we

may have to assume the underlying obligations with respect to our guarantees

See note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information related to the gain on mortgage

settlements during fiscal 2011

Provision for Income taxes

We recorded an income tax provision benefit of $l4699 $4409 and $206 in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively For fiscal 2012 our effective tax rate of approximately l22.3% differs from the statutory rate of 35.0%

primarily due to the reversal of the majority of the valuation allowance on existing deferred tax assets resulting in

credit to income of $18704 For fiscal 2011 our effective tax rate of 7.3% differed from the statutory rate of 35.0%

primarily due to our utilization of net operating loss carryforwards and credits to significantly offset the taxable gain on

the sale of our investment in IHFC resulting in benefit of $6341 against our tax provision The benefit recognized in

fiscal 2010 arose primarily as result of the lapse of the statute of limitations on unrecognized state tax benefits

partially offset by the accrual of income taxes to be paid in certain states and penalties associated with certain

unrecognized tax benefits See note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding our

income tax provision benefit as well as our net deferred tax assets and other matters

With the release of the majority of the valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets we now have net deferred tax

assets of $17317 as of November 24 2012 which upon utilization are expected to reduce our cash outlays for income

taxes in future
years It will require approximately $49000 of future taxable income to utilize our net deferred tax assets

10
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are committed to maintaining strong balance sheet in order to withstand the current difficult industry conditions to

allow us to take advantage of opportunities as market conditions improve and to execute our long-term retail strategies

With significant additional liquidity provided by the sale of our interest in IHFC the final distribution of funds from the

CDSOA and the gradual recovery
of our sales from the low point reached during the recession we have strengthened

our balance sheet and have begun to see return to operating profitability Furthermore the vast majority of the stores

that were operated by the licensees experiencing the most severe financial distress have since been taken over by us or

closed resulting in remaining fleet of licensees which we believe to be considerably more financially sound

Sale of IHFC Final Distribution of CDSOA Funds

During the second quarter of fiscal 2012 we received $9010 representing our share of the final distribution of duties

that had been withheld by U.S Customs and Border Protection under the Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act

See note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the CDSOA final distribution

and claims that could possibly result in the retum of some or all of this distribution

On May 22011 we completed the sale of our investment in IHFC receiving cash proceeds of $69152 upon closing and

recording gain of $85542 During the first quarter of fiscal 2012 we received an additional $1410 representing our

share of the release of tax indemnification escrow which had been withheld from proceeds at closing At November

24 2012 we still carried receivable in the amount of $4695 representing general indenmification escrow withheld at

closing On December 19 2012 we received $2348 for the release of half of the general indemnification escrow with

the remainder provided it is not used for contingencies being due for release to us during 2014 Currently we have no

reason to believe that any obligations will arise out of such contingencies and therefore expect that the escrowed funds

along with earnings thereon will be released to us in their entirety as scheduled See note 11 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information regarding the sale of IHFC

With the additional liquidity provided by these events we have retired certain debt and other long-term obligations

settled various closed stores and idle facilities obligations resumed paying quarterly dividend began buying back

stock and paid special dividends of $0.50 per share and $1.25 per share during fiscal 2012 as well as regular and special

dividends of $0.10 and $0.50 per share respectively during 2011 We will continue to evaluate appropriate uses of

available cash which may include more of such items previously listed along with future working capital needs and

investments in new or repositioned Company-owned stores

Cash Flows

Cash provided by operations during fiscal 2012 was $7956 compared to cash used in operations of $5431 during fiscal

2011 representing an improvement of $13387 in cash flows from operations Fiscal 2012 included $9010 received

from the final CDSOA distribution while no similar distributions were received during fiscal 2011 The remaining

improvement of $4377 represents improved operations offset in part by planned investment in additional inventory

associated with the launch of new products

Our overall cash position declined during fiscal 2012 by $24035 Offsetting the $7956 of cash provided by operating

activities was $28184 of cash used in financing activities for the payment of regular and special dividends and for the

repurchase of common stock Cash used in investing activities of $3807 included investments in property and

equipment of $9000 primarily related to our new store locations and the purchase of new retail data processing system

expected to become operational during the first half of fiscal 2013 partially offset by net proceeds from the liquidation

of our remaining portfolio of marketable securities the release of previously escrowed funds from the sale of IHFC and

collections on our notes receivable See our Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for additional information regarding

our sources and uses of cash during fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 With cash and cash equivalents of $45566 on hand at

November 24 2012 we believe we have sufficient liquidity to fund operations for the foreseeable future

11
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Receivables and Inventory

We recorded $376 of bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges during fiscal 2012 as compared to $13490 during

fiscal 2011 reflecting improved credit positions with our current fleet of licensees Over the six quarters ended with the

second quarter of 2011 we recorded $19593 of bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges The vast majority of

these charges related to licensee stores that were closed or taken over During that time period we terminated operating

licenses covering 29 stores as these licensees were struggling to meet their obligations to us Of these 29 stores were

closed and 20 were acquired to be operated as Company-owned stores Although future store closures and acquisitions

are possible we expect the pace to be significantly less than during that time period In addition we believe the

remaining fleet of licensees is more financially sound than those we terminated during that time period The bad debt

and notes receivable valuation charges which we have experienced since the third quarter of 2011 have averaged

approximately $140 per quarter We believe that this average level of bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges is

more indicative of the expected trend of future charges See notes and to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional information regarding our accounts and notes receivable at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011

Certain of our accounts and notes receivable are secured by the filing of security statements in accordance with the

Uniform Commercial Code andlor real estate owned by the note holder and in some cases personal guarantees by our

licensees Our practice has generally been to work with the store owner to run going out of business sale and use any

proceeds to fund the remaining receivable Our success with these events has varied However typically the amounts

recovered have not been materially different from the carrying amount of the receivable Consequently we generally

have not been required to record significant bad debt expenses upon the conclusion of the event

Our investment in inventory affects our liquidity in several different ways First cash paid for raw materials labor and

factory overhead for the manufacture or assembly of our domestic inventories is typically paid out well in advance of

receiving cash from the sale of these inventories Payments for our imported inventories are funded much further in

advance of receiving cash from the sale of these inventories as compared to our domestically manufactured or assembled

inventories The length of our import supply chain necessitates complex forecasting of future demand levels and is

highly judgmental In economic downturns the speed at which we can respond to decreasing demand is slowed as we

typically have imported inventory in shipment or being manufactured at any given time In addition we may also have

inventory commitments under purchase orders that have not begun the manufacturing process Consequently as

inventories build temporarily during downturns or as we near new product roll-outs our liquidity is reduced as we have

more cash invested in our products Second the availability under our revolving credit facility is impacted by changes in

our inventory balances Lastly if we fail to respond to changes in consumer tastes quickly enough inventories may
build and decrease our liquidity See note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

regarding the composition of our inventories as well as our reserves for excess quantities and obsolete items

The activity in the reserves for excess quantities and obsolete inventory by segment are as follows

Wholesale Retail

Segment Segment Total

BalanceatNovember272010 1519 209 1728

Additions charged to expense 688 272 960

Write-offs 1220 293 1513
Balance at November 26 2011 987 188 1175

Additions charged to expense 1334 443 1777

Write-offs 1606 257 1863
BalanceatNovember242012 715 374 1089

The increase in additions charged to expense for fiscal 2012 over 2011 is primarily related to reserves taken on

discontinued products as new product offerings were rolled out during the second half of 2012

Our estimates and assumptions used in the determination of our inventory reserves have been reasonably accurate in the

past We did not make any significant changes to our methodology for determining inventory reserves in 2012 and do

not anticipate that our methodology is reasonably likely to change in the future plus or minus 10% change in our

inventory reserves would not have been material to our financial statements for the periods presented

12
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Our annual inventory turnover rate and ending days supply on hand for the years ended November 24 2012 November

26 2011 and November 27 2010 are as follows

2012 2011 2010

Consolidated

Annual inventory turns 2.5 2.9 3.3

Ending days supply on hand 164 131 122

Wholesale segment

Annual inventory turns 3.9 4.5 5.3

Ending days supply on hand 107 84 77

Retail Segment

Annual inventory turns 4.1 4.1 3.9

Ending days supply on hand 99 90 105

On consolidated basis and for the wholesale segment the reduced inventory turnover rate and increased supply on

hand for fiscal 2012 as compared to 2011 is primarily due to an investment in inventory for the HGTV initiative timing

of receipt of certain inventory from Asia planned increases to support other upholstery growth initiatives and the

increasing proportion of Company-owned BHF stores in the total store network 62% of BHF stores were Company-

owned at November 24 2012 as compared with 56% at November 26 2011 Inventory sold by our wholesale segment

to our retail segment remains on our consolidated balance sheet for longer period of time At our retail segment the

turnover rate was consistent for fiscal 2012 as compared to 2011 while the slight increase in days supply on hand is due

in part to the acquisition of two Company-owned stores late in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012

The decline in consolidated and wholesale inventory turns along with the related increase in days supply on hand for

fiscal 2011 as compared to 2010 was largely related to our inventory reduction efforts in fiscal 2009 in response to the

economic recession We had reduced inventories to such low level as we entered fiscal 2010 that as business began to

recover we experienced stock shortages which impeded our ability to serve our customers As result we began

planned increases in inventory levels during the latter half of 2010

Debt and Other Obligations

On December 18 2012 we entered into new credit facility with our bank extending us line of credit of up to

$15000 This new line is secured by our accounts receivable and inventory The new facility contains certain covenants

requiring us to maintain certain key financial ratios We are in compliance with all covenants under the agreement and

expect to remain in compliance for the foreseeable future

At November 24 2012 we had $1966 outstanding under standby letters of credit

We have two mortgages totaling $3294 outstanding as of November 24 2012 We expect to satisfy the remaining

mortgage obligations using cash flow from operations or our available cash on hand

We lease land and buildings that are used in the operation of our Company-owned retail stores as well as in the operation

of licensee-owned stores We had obligations of $72800 at November 24 2012 for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancelable operating leases having remaining terms in excess of one year We also have guaranteed certain

lease obligations of licensee operators Remaining tems under these lease guarantees range from one to three years We

were contingently liable under licensee lease obligation guarantees in the amount of $2007 at November 24 2012

Dividends and Share Repurchases

During fiscal 2012 four quarterly dividends totaling $2070 and two special dividends totaling $19371 were paid to

shareholders We also repurchased 644395 shares of our stock for $7015 The weighted-average effect of these share

repurchases was to increase our basic and diluted earnings per share in 2012 by $0.05 and $0.06 respectively
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Capital Expenditures

We currently anticipate that total capital expenditures for fiscal 2013 will be between $9000 and $11000 which will be

used primarily for the build out of new stores remodeling of existing Company-owned stores and the implementation of

new retail store enterprise system Our capital expenditure and working capital requirements in the foreseeable future

may change depending on many factors including but not limited to the overall performance of the new stores our rate

of growth our operating results and any adjustments in our operating plan needed in response to industry conditions

competition or unexpected events We believe that our existing cash together with cash from operations will be

sufficient to meet our capital expenditure and working capital requirements for the foreseeable future

Fair Value Measurements

We account for items measured at fair value in accordance with ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and

Disclosures ASC 820s valuation techniques are based on observable and unobservable inputs Observable inputs

reflect readily obtainable data from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions

ASC 820 classifies these inputs into the following hierarchy

Level Inputs Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level Inputs Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar instruments

in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value

drivers are observable

Level Inputs Instruments with primarily unobservable value drivers

Areas which involve significant fair value estimates in determining the amounts recognized in our financial statements

and the level of inputs utilized are as follows note references refer to our Consolidated Financial Statements included

under Item in this Annual Report

Hierarchy Financial

Level of Statement

Utilized Note

Inputs Reference

Marketable securities Level Note

Investment in Fortress Level Note

Acquisitions goodwill Level Note 10

Loan lease guarantees Level Note 18

All other fair value estimates which are made for disclosure
purposes only utilize Level Inputs see Note to our

Consolidated Financial Statements
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

We enter into contractual obligations and commercial commitments in the ordinary course of business See Note 18 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of these obligations The following table summarizes our

contractual payment obligations and other commercial commitments and the fiscal year in which they are expected to be

paid

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total

Post employment benefit

obligationsl 1226 1252 1158 1113 1050 9320 15119

Real estate notes payable 241 258 276 295 315 1909 3294

Other obligations

commitments 625 850 800 800 100 500 3675

Contractual advertising 2500 2500 2500 2500 10000

Interest payable 214 198 180 161 141 340 1234

Letters of credit 1966 1966

Operating leases 18358 14550 11983 9015 6393 12501 72800

Lease guarantees 1408 407 389 2204
Purchase obligations

Total 26538 20015 17286 13884 7999 24570 110292

Does not reflect reduction for the impact of any company owned life insurance proceeds to be

received Currently we have life insurance policies with net death benefits of $4244 to provide funding for

these obligations See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information

Does not reflect reduction for the impact of sublease income to be received See Note 18 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for more information

The Company is not party to any long-term supply contracts with respect to the purchase of raw materials or

finished goods At the end of fiscal year 2012 we had approximately $15240 in open purchase orders

primarily for imported inventories which are in the ordinary course of business

Lease guarantees relate to payments we would only be required to make in the event of default on the part of

the guaranteed parties

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We utilize stand-by letters of credit in the procurement of certain goods in the normal course of business We lease land

and buildings that are primarily used in the operation of BHF stores We have guaranteed certain lease obligations of

licensee operators as part of our retail strategy We also have guaranteed loans of certain of our licensees to finance

initial inventory packages for these stores See Contractual Obligations and Commitments table above and Note 18 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of operating leases lease guarantees and loan guarantees

including descriptions of the terms of such commitments and methods used to mitigate risks associated with these

arrangements

Contingencies

We are involved in various claims and litigation as well as environmental matters which arise in the normal course of

business Although the final outcome of these legal and environmental matters cannot be determined based on the facts

presently known it is our opinion that the final resolution of these matters will not have material adverse effect on our

financial position or future results of operations
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In 2009 our former vendor Colonial Trading Inc Colonial filed lawsuit against us alleging among other things

breach of contract by the Company after we cancelled orders for cribs following product recalls We filed counterclaims

for breach of contract and warranty On August 2012 jury returned verdict in favor of Colonial and in October

2012 judgment was entered in the amount of $1437 Colonials motion for attorneys fees is pending Both Bassett and

Colonial have appealed with Bassett seeking new trial for damages for breach of express warranty among other

things and Colonial seeking among other things to treble its breach of contract damages We currently have sufficient

reserves to cover the judgment amount

See note to our Consolidated Financial Statements regarding claims which could possibly result in the return of all or

portion of the CDSOA final distribution

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America GAAP which requires that certain estimates and assumptions be made that affect the

amounts and disclosures reported in those financial statements and the related accompanying notes Actual results could

differ from these estimates and assumptions We use our best judgment in valuing these estimates and may as

warranted solicit external advice Estimates are based on current facts and circumstances prior experience and other

assumptions believed to be reasonable The following critical accounting policies some of which are impacted

significantly by judgments assumptions and estimates affect our consolidated financial statements

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated

and its majority-owned subsidiaries for whom we have operating control In accordance with ASC Topic 810 we have

evaluated our licensees and certain other entities to determine whether they are variable interest entities VIEs of

which we are the primary beneficiary and thus would require consolidation in our financial statements To date we have

concluded that none of our licensees nor any other of our counterparties represent VIEs

Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership and title to the product have

transferred to the buyer This generally occurs upon the shipment of goods to independent dealers or in the case of

Company-owned retail stores upon delivery to the customer Our payment terms generally vary from 30 to 60 days An

estimate for returns and allowances has been provided in recorded sales The contracts with our licensee store owners do

not provide for any royalty or license fee to be paid to us

Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 Revenue Recognition SAB 104 outlines the four basic criteria for recognizing

revenue as follows persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have been

rendered the sellers price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured SAB 104

further asserts that if collectibility of all or portion of the revenue is not reasonably assured revenue recognition should

be deferred until payment is received During fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 there were zero four and seven dealers

respectively for which these criteria were not met and therefore revenue was being recognized on cost recovery
basis

As of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 two and four dealers respectively remained on the cost recovery

basis
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from

the inability of our customers to make required payments Our accounts receivable reserves were $1789 and $2092 at

November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively representing 10.2% and 12.4% of our gross accounts

receivable balances at those dates respectively The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on review of specifically

identified customer accounts in addition to an overall aging analysis We evaluate the collectibility of our receivables

from our licensees and other customers on quarterly basis based on factors such as their financial condition our

collateral position potential future plans with licensees and other similar factors Our allowance for doubtful accounts

represents our best estimate of potential losses on our accounts and notes receivable and is adjusted accordingly based on

historical experience current developments and present economic conditions and trends In the current economic

environment our historical experience with customers carries less weight than in previous years
The timeliness of

licensees or customers ability to pay us can deteriorate at much faster pace than in previous years As such despite

our best efforts the ultimate precision with respect to our allowance for doubtful accounts is likely to be less when

compared to previous periods Although actual losses have not differed materially from our previous estimates future

losses could differ from our current estimates Unforeseen events such as licensee or customer bankruptcy filing could

have material impact on our results of operations We recorded $376 of bad debt and notes receivable valuation

charges during fiscal 2012 as compared to $13490 during fiscal 2011 reflecting improved credit positions with our

current fleet of licensees Over the six quarters ended with the second quarter of 2011 we recorded $19593 of bad debt

and notes receivable valuation charges The vast majority of these charges related to licensee stores that were closed or

taken over During that time period we terminated operating licenses covering 29 stores as these licensees were

struggling to meet their obligations to us Of these 29 stores were closed and 20 were acquired to be operated as

Company-owned stores Although future store closures and acquisitions are possible we expect the pace to be

significantly less than during that time period In addition we believe the remaining fleet of licensees is more

financially sound than those we terminated during that time period The bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

which we have experienced since the third quarter of 2011 have averaged approximately $140 per quarter We believe

that this average level of bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges is more indicative of the expected trend of

future charges

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined for domestic furniture inventories

using the last-in first-out method The cost of imported inventories is determined on first-in first-out basis We

estimate an inventory reserve for excess quantities and obsolete items based on specific identification and historical

write-offs taking into account future demand and market conditions If actual demand or market conditions in the future

are less favorable than those estimated additional inventory write-downs may be required Our average annual write-offs

of excess and obsolete inventory over the past three fiscal
years

have not materially exceeded the average opening

balance of our reserves for that same period

17



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In thousands except share and per share data

Valuation Allowance on Deferred Tax Assets We evaluate our deferred income tax assets to determine if valuation

allowances are required or should be adjusted valuation allowance is established against our deferred tax assets based

on consideration of all available evidence both positive and negative using more likely than not standard This

assessment considers among other matters the nature frequency and severity of recent losses forecasts of future

profitability the duration of statutory carryforward periods our experience with tax attributes expiring unused and tax

planning alternatives In making such judgments significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified

Due to the losses incurred prior to fiscal 2011 we were in cumulative loss position for the preceding three years which

is considered significant negative evidence that is difficult to overcome on more likely than not standard through

objectively verifiable data While our long-term financial outlook remained positive we concluded that our ability to

rely on our long-term outlook and forecasts as to future taxable income was limited due to uncertainty created by the

weight of the negative evidence As result we previously recorded valuation allowance on certain of the deferred tax

assets In fiscal 2011 due to the gain recognized on the sale of our interest in IHFC we were able to utilize net

operating loss carryforwards and credits to significantly offset the taxable gain resulting in significant reduction of the

valuation allowances However as the gain on the sale of IHFC did not represent source of recurring future taxable

income we continued to record valuation allowance against substantially all of our deferred tax assets as of November

26 2011 Due to our positive earnings during fiscal 2012 and the absence of any significant negative evidence to the

contrary we have concluded that we can rely on our positive long-term outlook and forecasts as to future taxable income

in evaluating our ability to realize our deferred tax assets Accordingly the reserve against the majority of our deferred

tax assets was removed in fiscal 2012 resulting in credit to income of $18704 which is included in our net income tax

benefit for the year The remaining valuation allowance of $908 is primarily related to state net operating loss

carryforwards for which it is currently considered to be more likely than not that they will not be utilized prior to their

expiration

Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the value assigned to tangible assets and liabilities

and identifiable intangible assets of businesses acquired The acquisition of assets and liabilities and any resulting

goodwill is allocated to the respective reporting unit Wholesale Retail or Real Estate/Investments We review goodwill

at the reporting unit level annually for impairment or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that assets

might be impaired

In accordance with ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill Other the goodwill impairment test consists of two-step

process if necessary However we first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the

fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform

the two-step goodwill impairment test described in ASC Topic 350 The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as

having likelihood of more than 50 percent If after assessing the totality of events or circumstances we determine that

it is not more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount then performing the

two-step impairment test is unnecessary and our goodwill is considered to be unimpaired However if based on our

qualitative assessment we conclude that it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its

carrying amount we will proceed with performing the two-step process

The first step compares the carrying value of each reporting unit that has goodwill with the estimated fair value of the

respective reporting unit Should the carrying value of reporting unit be in excess of the estimated fair value of that

reporting unit the second step is performed whereby we must calculate the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting

the fair value of all tangible and intangible net assets of the reporting unit from the fair value of the reporting unit This

second step represents hypothetical purchase price allocation as if we had acquired the reporting unit on that

date Our impairment methodology uses discounted cash flow analysis requiring certain assumptions and estimates to

be made regarding future profitability of the reporting unit and industry economic factors While we believe such

assumptions and estimates are reasonable the actual results may differ materially from the projected amounts
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate

long-lived assets may not be recoverable or that the remaining useful life may warrant revision When such events or

circumstances are present we assess the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value

will be recovered through the expected undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the asset In the event

the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying value of the asset an impairment loss

equal to the excess of the assets carrying value over its fair value is recorded When analyzing our real estate properties

for potential impairment we consider such qualitative factors as our experience in leasing andlor selling real estate

properties as well as specific site and local market characteristics Upon the closure of Bassett Home Furnishings store

we generally write offal tenant improvements which are only suitable for use in such store

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See note to our Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the impact or potential impact of recent accounting

pronouncements upon our financial position and results of operations

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes in the value of foreign currencies Substantially all of our imports

purchased outside of North America are denominated in U.S dollars Therefore we believe that gains or losses resulting

from changes in the value of foreign currencies relating to foreign purchases not denominated in U.S dollars would not

be material to our results from operations in fiscal 2013

We are exposed to market risk from changes in the cost of raw materials used in our manufacturing processes

principally wood woven fabric and foam products recovery in home construction could result in increases in wood

and fabric costs from current levels and the cost of foam products which are petroleum-based is sensitive to changes in

the price of oil

We have potential exposure to market risk related to the current weakness in the commercial real estate market Our

retail real estate holdings of $12736 and $16657 at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively for stores

currently or formerly operated by licensees as well as our holdings of $29043 and $26774 at November 24 2012 and

November 26 2011 respectively for Company-owned stores could suffer significant impairment in value if we are

forced to close additional stores and sell or lease the related properties in the current market Additionally if we are

required to assume responsibility for payment under the lease obligations of $2007 and $2515 which we have

guaranteed on behalf of licensees as of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively we may not be able to

secure sufficient sub-lease income in the current market to offset the payments required under the guarantees

Number of Aggregate Net Book Value

Locations Square Footage in thousands

Real estate occupied by Company-owned and operated stores

included in property and equipment net 11 276887 29043

Investment real estate

Leased to operating licensee 18000 3841

Leased to others 67521 6726

Available for sale or lease 26500 1840

Other 329

Total included in retail real estate 112021 12736

Total Company investment in retail real estate 16 388908 41779

Includes two properties encumbered under mortgages totaling $3294 at November 24 2012

Consists of leasehold improvements in locations leased by the Company and subleased to licensees

We are no longer exposed to market risk for changes in the market prices of our marketable securities due to the

liquidation of our portfolio during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012
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As used herein unless the context otherwise requires Bassett the Company we us and our refer to

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and its subsidiaries References to 2012 2011 2010 2009 and 2008 mean

the fiscal years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 November 27 2010 November 28 2009 and November

29 2008 Please note that fiscal 2008 contained 53 weeks

SAFE-HARBOR FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This discussion contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 with respect to the financial condition results of operations and business of Bassett Furniture

Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries Such forward-looking statements are identified by use of forward-looking

words such as anticipates believes plans estimates expects aimed and intends or words or phrases of

similarexpression These forward-looking statements involve certain risks and uncertainties No assurance can be given

that any such matters will be realized Important factors which should be read in conjunction with Risk Factors that

could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements include

competitive conditions in the home furnishings industry

general economic conditions

overall retail traffic levels and consumer demand for home furnishings

ability of our customers and consumers to obtain credit

Bassett store openings

store closings and the profitability of the stores independent licensees and Company-owned retail stores

ability to implement our Company-owned retail strategies and realize the benefits from such strategies as

they are implemented

fluctuations in the cost and availability of raw materials labor and sourced products

results of marketing and advertising campaigns

information and technology advances

ability to execute global sourcing strategies

future tax legislation or regulatory or judicial positions

ability to efficiently manage the import supply chain to minimize business interruption
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

November 24 2012 and November 26 2011

In thousands except share and per share data

2012 2011

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 45566 69601

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1789 and

$2092 as of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively 15755 14756

Inventories 57916 45129
Deferred income taxes net 6832 393

Other current assets 6439 10324

Total current assets 132508 140203

Property and equipment net 56624 49946

Other long-term assets

Retail real estate 12736 16257

Deferred income taxes net 10485 767

Other 14827 16001

Total other long-term assets 38048 33025

Total assets 227180 223174

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 22405 18821

Accrued compensation and benefits 6926 7201

Customer deposits 12253 9238
Dividends payable 542 6063
Other accrued liabilities 10454 10504

Total current liabilities 52580 51827

Long-term liabilities

Post employment benefit obligations 11577 11226

Real estate notes payable 3053 3662
Other long-term liabilities 2690 4024

Total long-term liabilities 17320 18912

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders equity

Common stock $5 par value 50000000 shares authorized issued and

outstanding 10836840 at November 24 2012 and 11342332 at November

262011 54184 56712
Retained earnings 104319 96331

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 1223 608
Total stockholders equity 157280 152435

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 227180 223174

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these balance sheets
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

For the
years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010

In thousands except per share data

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative
expenses excluding bad debt

and notes receivable valuation charges

Bad debt and notes receivable valuation charges

Licensee debt cancellation charges

Restructuring and impairment charges

Lease exit costs

2012

269672

128350

141322

134796

376

711

359

2011

253208

125642

127566

122023

13490

6447

2500

3728

2010

235254

122566

112688

110808

6567

Income loss from operations

Gain on sale of affiliate

Income from Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act

Income from investments

Other than temporary impairment of investments

Income from unconsolidated affiliated companies net

Interest
expense

Retail real estate impairment charges

Other loss net

Income loss before income taxes 12014 59751

2.43 4.84

2.41 4.79

0.17

0.17

5080 20622

85542

9010

453

806
347

295

765

163

1840

912

4687

488

2325

4700

1994
3953

1775 3072 3040

Income tax benefit provision

Net income loss

Net income loss per share

Basic income loss per share

Diluted income loss per share

14699

26713

4409
55342

2208

206

2002

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

For the years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010

In thousands

2012 2011 2010

Net income loss 26713 55342 2002
Other comprehensive loss

Actuarial adjustment to supplemental executive retirement

defined benefit plan SERP 656 619 666
Income taxes related to SERP 277 486

Net change in unrealized holding gains 211 73 1879
Income taxes related to unrealized holding gains 25 25

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax 615 181 2545

Total comprehensive income loss 26098 55161 4547

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

For the years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010

In thousands

2012 2011 2010

Operating activities

Net income loss 26713 55342 2002

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by used

in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 5473 5514 5966

Equity in undistributed income of investments and unconsolidated

affiliated companies 347 1.840 4737
Provision for restructuring and asset impairment charges 711 2500

Licensee debt cancellation charges 6447

Lease exit costs 359 2228

Provision for lease and loan guarantees 41 1283 1407

Provision for losses on accounts and notes receivable 376 13490 6567

Other than temporary impairment of investments 806

Gain on sale of equity securities 2024
Gain on mortgage settlement 1305
Gain on sale of affiliate 85542

Impairment and lease exit charges on retail real estate 4790

Deferred income taxes 15822 236

Other net 642 214 256

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 2967 1034 4467
Inventories 11307 299 5443
Other current assets 276 2300 5262

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3636 12421 7003

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 7956 5431 7788

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment 9000 4168 2013
Proceeds from sales and condemnation of property and equipment 19 211 4247

Acquisition of retail licensee stores 549 378
Proceeds from sale ofaffiliate 1410 69152

Release of collateral restrictions on cash equivalents 11240

Proceeds from sales of investments 4854 3297 9101

Purchases of investments 1781 3132 8851
Dividends from affiliates 3756 937

Equity contribution to affiliate 980
Cash received on notes receivable 1240 127 494

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 3807 79503 3537

Financing activities

Net repayments under revolving credit facility 15000

Repayments of real estate notes payable 570 8647 7530
Repayments of other notes 3406 1087
Issuance of common stock 842 170 142

Repurchases of common stock 7015 2964
Cash dividends 21441 695

Net cash used in financing activities 28184 15542 23475

Change in cash and cash equivalents 24035 58530 12150
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 69601 11071 23221

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 45566 69601 11071

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

For the years ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010

In thousands except share and per share data

Common Stock

Shares Amount

Accumulated

other

Retained comprehensive

earnings income loss Total

Balance November 28 2009 11454716 57274 481 50461 2118 110334

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Actuarial adjustment to SERP

Net change in unrealized holding

gains

Total comprehensive loss

Issuance of common stock

Stock-based compensation

Balance November 27 2010

1092
5665

55342

133 133

48 48
55161

1092
5665

265

2965

Balance November 26 2011 11342332 56712 96331 608 152435

Comprehensive income

Net income

Actuarial adjustment to SERP net

of tax

Net change in unrealized holding

gains net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Regular dividends $0.20 per share

Special dividend $1.25 per share

Issuance of common stock

Purchase and retirement of common

stock

Stock-based compensation

2214
13706

26713

379 379

236 236
26098

2214
13706

1046

7015
636

Balance November 24 2012 10836840 54184 104319 1223 157280

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements

Additional

paid-in

capital

2002 2002
666 666

1879 1879

4547
104258 521 379 142

376 376

11558974 57795 478 48459 427 106305

Comprehensive income

Net income

Actuarial adjustment to SERP

Net change in unrealized holding

gains

Total comprehensive income

Regular dividends $0.10 per share

Special dividend $0.50 per share

Issuance of common stock

Purchase and retirement of common

stock

Stock-based compensation

55342

154158 771 506

370800 1854 398 713
426 426

26713

138903 694 352

644395 3222 988 2805
636
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In thousands except share and
per

share data

Description of Business

Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated together with its consolidated subsidiaries Bassett we our the

Company based in Bassett Va is leading manufacturer marketer and retailer of branded home furnishings

Bassetts full range of furniture products and accessories designed to provide quality style and value are sold through

an exclusive nation-wide network of 86 retail stores known as Bassett Home Furnishings referred to as BHF Of the

86 stores the Company owns and operates 53 stores Company-owned retail stores with the other 33 being

independently owned licensee operated We also distribute our products through other multi-line furniture stores

many of which feature Bassett galleries or design centers specialty stores and mass merchants

The Company sourced approximately 50% of its wholesale products to be distributed through the store network from

various countries with the remaining volume produced at its two domestic manufacturing facilities

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The Companys fiscal year ends on the last Saturday in November which periodically results in 53-week year Fiscal

2012 2011 and 2010 each contained 52 weeks The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Bassett

Furniture Industries Incorporated and our majority-owned subsidiaries for whom we have operating control All

significant intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation The financial statements have been

prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States GAAP Unless otherwise

indicated references in the Consolidated Financial Statements to fiscal 2012 201 and 2010 are to Bassetts fiscal year

ended November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010 respectively References to the ASC
included hereinafter refer to the Accounting Standards Codification established by the Financial Accounting Standards

Board as the source of authoritative GAAP

For comparative purposes certain amounts in the 2011 and 2010 financial statements have been reclassified to conform

to the 2012 presentation

The equity method of accounting is used for our investments in affiliated companies in which we exercise significant

influence but do not maintain operating control Consolidated net income or net loss includes our proportionate share of

the net income or net loss of these companies

We analyzed our licensees under the requirements for variable interest entities VIEs All of these licensees operate as

BHF stores and are furniture retailers We sell furniture to these licensees and in some cases have extended credit

beyond normal terms made lease guarantees guaranteed loans or loaned directly to the licensees We have recorded

reserves for potential exposures related to these licensees See Note 18 for disclosure of leases lease guarantees and loan

guarantees Based on financial projections and best available information all licensees have sufficient equity to carry out

their principal operating activities without subordinated financial support Furthermore we believe that the power to

direct the activities that most significantly impact the licensees operating performance continues to lie with the

ownership of the licensee dealers Our rights to assume control over or otherwise influence the licensees significant

activities only exist pursuant to our license and security agreements and are in the nature of protective rights as

contemplated under ASC Topic 810 We completed our assessment for other potential VIEs and concluded that there

were none We will continue to reassess the status of potential VIEs including when facts and circumstances surrounding

each potential VIE change

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of

contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period Some of the more significant estimates include allowances for doubtful accounts valuation of

inventories valuation of deferred taxes sales returns loan and lease guarantees and insurance reserves Actual results

could differ from those estimates
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

In thousands except share and per share data

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership and title to the product have transferred to the buyer
This occurs upon the shipment of goods to independent dealers or in the case of Company-owned retail stores upon
delivery to the customer We offer terms varying from 30 to 60 days for wholesale customers Estimates for returns and

allowances for advertising and promotional arrangements have been recorded as reduction to revenue The contracts

with our licensee store owners do not provide for any royalty or license fee to be paid to us Revenue is reported net of

any taxes collected

Staff Accounting Bulletin No 104 Revenue Recognition SAB 104 outlines the four basic criteria for recognizing

revenue as follows persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have been

rendered the sellers price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured SAB
104 further asserts that if collectability of all or portion of the revenue is not reasonably assured revenue recognition
should be deferred until payment is received During fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 there were two four and seven dealers

respectively for which these criteria were not met and therefore revenue was being recognized on cost recovery basis

As of November 24 2012 November 26 2011 and November 27 2010 there were zero two and seven dealers

respectively that remained on the cost recovery basis The cumulative amount of deferred gross profit is carried in the

accompanying balance sheets as reduction of gross accounts receivable until payment is received The following table

details the reduction of gross accounts receivable related to deferred gross profit

November 24 November 26 November 27
2012 2011 2010

Reduction of gross accounts receivable 494

The following table details the total revenue and cost deferred for each fiscal year prior to any subsequent recognition

due to the transaction meeting the revenue recognition requirements

2012 2011 2010

Revenue deferred 1678 947

Cost deferred 1175 663

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash on hand demand deposits in banks and all highly liquid investments with an original

maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

In addition to the amounts paid net of cash acquired for the acquisition of licensee stores reported under investing

activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows the majority of such acquisitions were funded
primarily through

non-cash transactions in which receivables due from the licensees were settled in exchange for certain inventory and

property and equipment of the licensees as well as the assumption of certain liabilities The value of the non-cash

portion of such transactions was $1592 $2298 and $2751 for 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

In thousands except share and per share data

Accounts Receivable

Substantially all of our trade accounts receivable is due from customers located within the United States We maintain an

allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required

payments The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on review of specifically identified accounts in addition to an

overall aging analysis Judgments are made with respect to the collectibility of accounts receivable based on historical

experience and current economic trends Actual losses could differ from those estimates The majority of our trade

accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts are attributable to amounts owed to us by our licensees with

the remaining receivables due primarily from national account customers and traditional distribution channel

customers The percentages of our trade accounts receivable and related allowance for doubtful accounts owed to us by

our licensees were as follows at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011

2012 2011

Portion of trade accounts receivable owed by licensees 52% 67%

Portion of allowance for doubtful accounts attributable to licensees 84% 79%

Notes Receivable

Previously when in the ordinary course of business licensee had substantial past due amounts due to the Company but

was otherwise considered viable and likely to continue as going concern we may have decided to move all or portion

of licensees past due accounts receivable to long-term interest-bearing note receivable We believed that the note

receivable allowed the licensee to focus on keeping current and future amounts current while continuing to meet its

financial obligations to us This is no longer our policy and we do not plan to convert additional past due receivables

into long-term interest bearing notes in the foreseeable future While the majority of our notes receivable were issued as

conversions of existing accounts receivable some were issued to assist licensees in opening or acquiring new stores in

underserved markets which we believed would benefit both the licensee and the Company Some of these notes are

collateralized by real estate

We examine notes receivable for evidence of impairment considering factors such as licensee capitalization projected

operating performance the viability of the market in which the licensee operates and the licensees operating history

including our cash receipts from the licensee licensee sales and any underlying collateral After considering these

factors should we believe that all or portion of the expected cash flows attributable to the note receivable will not be

received we record an impairment charge on the note by estimating future cash flows and discounting them at the

effective interest rate Any difference between the estimated discounted cash flows and the carrying value of the note is

recorded as an increase to the allowance for doubtful accounts We do not accrue interest income due on notes for which

the licensee is unable to make interest payments

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that subject us to credit risk consist primarily of investments accounts and notes receivable and

financial guarantees Investments are managed within established guidelines to mitigate risks Accounts and notes

receivable and financial guarantees subject us to credit risk partially due to the concentration of amounts due from and

guaranteed on behalf of independent licensee customers At November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 our aggregate

exposure from receivables and guarantees
related to customers consisted of the following

2012 2011

Accounts receivable net of allowances Note 15755 14756

Notes receivable net of allowances Note 636 1877

Contingent obligations under lease and loan guarantees less amounts recognized

Note 18
1684 2193

Total credit risk exposure
related to customers 8075 18826
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

In thousands except share and
per share data

At November 24 2012 approximately 12% of the
aggregate risk exposure net of reserves shown above was attributable

to one licensee At November 26 2011 approximately 20% of the aggregate risk exposure net of
reserves shown above

was attributable to two licensees accounting for
approximately 10% each In fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 no customer

accounted for more than 10% of total net sales

We have no foreign manufacturing or retail operations We define export sales as sales to any country or territory other
than the United States or its territories or possessions Our export sales were approximately $6121 $6598 and $5350
in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Inventories

Inventories retail merchandise finished goods work in process and raw materials are stated at the lower of cost or
market Cost is determined for domestic manufactured furniture inventories using the last-in first-out LIFO method
because we believe this methodology provides better matching of revenue and expenses The cost of imported
inventories is determined on first-in first-out FIFO basis Inventories accounted for under the LIFO method
represented 18% and 15% of total inventory before reserves at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011
respectively We estimate inventory reserves for excess quantities and obsolete items based on specific identification and
historical write-offs taking into account future demand and market conditions If actual demand or market conditions in
the future are less favorable than those estimated additional inventory write-downs may be required

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of all land buildings and leasehold improvements and machinery and equipment
used in the manufacturing and warehousing of furniture our Company-owned retail operations and the administration of
the wholesale and Company-owned retail operations This property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets utilizing the straight-line
method Buildings and improvements are generally depreciated over period of 10 to 39 years Machinery and
equipment are generally depreciated over period of to 10 years Leasehold improvements are amortized based on the
underlying lease term or the assets estimated useful life whichever is shorter

Retail Real Estate

Retail real estate is comprised of owned and leased properties which have been utilized by licensee operated BHF stores
including properties which are now leased or subleased to non-licensee tenants or are currently vacant These properties
are located in high traffic upscale locations that are normally occupied by large successful national retailers This real

estate is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and is depreciated over the useful lives of the respective assets

utilizing the straight line method
Buildings and improvements are generally depreciated over period of 10 to 39

years Leasehold improvements are amortized based on the underlying lease term or the assets estimated useful life
whichever is shorter As of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 the cost of retail real estate included land
totaling $4602 and $5731 respectively and building and leasehold improvements of $12680 and $15431
respectively As of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 accumulated depreciation of retail real estate was
$4547 and $4905 respectively Depreciation expense was $501 $876 and $1306 in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010
respectively Impairment charges related to retail real estate totaled $3953 for 2011 and are included in retail real estate

impairment charges in other income component of non-operating expense in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations There were no retail real estate impairment charges in 2010 and 2012

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of consideration given over the fair value of the tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets of businesses acquired The acquisition of assets and liabilities and the
resulting goodwill is allocated to the respective reporting unit Wholesale Retail or Real Estate/Investments We review
goodwill at the

reporting unit level
annually for impairment or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that

assets might be impaired
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

In thousands except share and per
share data

In accordance with ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill Other the goodwill impairment test consists of two-step

process
if necessary However we first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the

fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform

the two-step goodwill impairment test described in ASC Topic 350 The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as

having likelihood of more than 50 percent If after assessing the totality of events or circumstances we determine that

it is not more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount then performing the

two-step impairment test is unnecessary and our goodwill is considered to be unimpaired However if based on our

qualitative assessment we conclude that it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its

carrying amount we will proceed with performing the two-step process

The first step compares the carrying value of each reporting unit that has goodwill with the estimated fair value of the

respective reporting unit Should the carrying value of reporting unit be in excess of the estimated fair value of that

reporting unit the second step is performed whereby we must calculate the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting

the fair value of all tangible and intangible net assets of the reporting unit from the fair value of the reporting unit This

second step represents hypothetical application
of the acquisition method of accounting as if we had acquired the

reporting unit on that date Our impairment methodology uses discounted cash flow analysis requiring certain

assumptions and estimates to be made regarding future profitability
of the reporting unit and industry economic

factors While we believe such assumptions and estimates are reasonable the actual results may differ materially from

the projected amounts As of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 goodwill
of $1731 and $435 respectively

all resulting from the acquisition
of retail stores see Note 10 is included in other assets in the accompanying balance

sheet Based on our qualitative assessment as described above we have concluded that this goodwill is not impaired

Impairment of Long Lived Assets

We periodically evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate long-lived assets may not be

recoverable or that the remaining useful life may warrant revision When such events or circumstances are present we

assess the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value will be recovered through the

expected undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use and eventual disposition
of the asset In the event the

sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying value of the asset an impairment loss equal

to the excess of the assets carrying value over its fair value is recorded Fair value is determined based on discounted

cash flows or appraised values depending on the nature of the assets The long-term nature of these assets requires the

estimation of cash inflows and outflows several years
into the future

When analyzing our real estate properties for potential impairment we consider such qualitative factors as our

experience in leasing andlor selling real estate properties as well as specific site and local market characteristics Upon

the closure of Bassett Home Furnishings store we generally write off all tenant improvements which are only suitable

for use in such store

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the liability method which requires that we recognize deferred tax assets and

liabilities for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using

enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary

differences are expected to

be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in

the period that includes the enactment date In addition significant judgment is required in evaluating our federal state

and foreign tax positions and in the determination of our tax provision Despite our belief that our liability for

unrecognized tax benefits is adequate it is often difficult to predict
the final outcome or the timing of the resolution of

any particular tax matters We may adjust these liabilities as relevant circumstances evolve such as guidance from the

relevant tax authority or our tax advisors or resolution of issues in the courts These adjustments are recognized as

component of income tax expense in the period in which they are identified
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

In thousands except share and per share data

We evaluate our deferred income tax assets to determine if valuation allowances are required or should be adjusted

valuation allowance is established against our deferred tax assets based on consideration of all available evidence both

positive and negative using more likely than not standard This assessment considers among other matters the

nature frequency and severity of recent losses forecasts of future profitability the duration of statutory carryforward

periods our experience with tax attributes expiring unused and tax planning alternatives In making such judgments

significant weight is given to evidence that can be objectively verified See Note 12

Shipping and Handling Costs

Costs incurred to deliver wholesale merchandise to customers are recorded in selling general and administrative
expense

and totaled $13548 $13680 and $13308 for fiscal 2012 2012 and 2010 respectively Costs incurred to deliver retail

merchandise to customers are also recorded in selling general and administrative expense and totaled $9957 $7452
and $4721 for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Advertising

Costs incurred for producing and distributing advertising and advertising materials are expensed when incurred and are

included in selling general and administrative expenses Advertising costs totaled $13296 $10399 and $8462 in fiscal

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Business Insurance Reserves

We have self-funded insurance programs in place to cover workers compensation and health insurance For the period

from July 2011 through June 2012 workers compensation was covered under guaranteed cost program These

insurance programs are subject to various stop-loss limitations and are partially re-insured through captive insurance

program We accrue estimated losses using historical loss experience Although we believe that the insurance reserves

are adequate the reserve estimates are based on historical experience which may not be indicative of current and future

losses We adjust insurance reserves as needed in the event that future loss experience differs from historical loss

patterns

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-29 which updates the guidance in ASC Topic 805 Business

Combinations The objective of ASU 2010-29 is to address diversity in practice about the interpretation of the pro forma

revenue and earnings disclosure requirements for business combinations The amendments in ASU 20 10-29 specify that

if public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose revenue and earnings of the

combined entity as though the business combinations that occurred during the current year
had occurred as of the

beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only The amendments also expand the supplemental pro

forma disclosures to include description of the nature and amount of material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments

directly attributable to the business combination included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings The

amendments affect any public entity as defined by ASC 805 that enters into business combinations that are material on

an individual or aggregate basis This guidance became effective for us for acquisitions occurring on or after the

beginning of our 2012 fiscal year The adoption of this guidance has not had and is not expected to have material

impact upon our financial position or results of operations

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-04 which updated the guidance in ASC Topic 820 Fair Value

Measurement The amendments in this Update generally represent clarifications of Topic 820 but also include some

instances where particular principle or requirement for measuring fair value or disclosing information about fair value

measurements has changed This Update results in common principles and requirements for measuring fair value and for

disclosing information about fair value measurements in accordance with U.S GAAP and International Financial

Reporting Standards The amendments in this Update are to be applied prospectively For public entities the

amendments are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 and early application is

not permitted This guidance became effective for us as of the beginning of our second quarter of fiscal 2012 The

adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on our financial position or results of operations

31



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

In thousands except share and per share data

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05 which updated the guidance in ASC Topic 220 Comprehensive

Income Under the amendments in this Update an entity has the option to present the total of comprehensive income the

components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement

of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements In both choices an entity is required to present

each component of net income along with total net income each component of other comprehensive income along with

total for other comprehensive income and total amount for comprehensive income This Update eliminates the

option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders

equity The amendments in this Update do not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or

when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income The amendments in this Update should

be applied retrospectively For public entities the amendments are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within

those years beginning after December 15 2011 and early application is permitted In December of 2011 the FASB

issued ASU No 2011-12 which defers only those provisions within ASU 2011-05 pertaining to reclassification

adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income We have adopted this guidance except for those

provisions deferred by ASU 2011-12 will become effective for us as of the end of our 2012 fiscal year We have elected

to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other

comprehensive income in two separate but consecutive statements The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact

on our financial position or results of operations

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss is comprised of the following net of taxes

November 24 November 26

2012 2011

Actuarial adjustment to SERP 1066 656
Unrealized holding gains

236

Excess of additional pension liability over unamortized transition obligation 157 188
1223 608

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of the following

November 24 November 26

2012 2011

Gross accounts receivable 17544 16848

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1789 2092

Net accounts receivable 15755 14756

Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts was as follows

2012 2011

Balance beginning of the year 2092 7366

Additions charged to expense
377 8778

Write-offs 680 14052

Balance end of the year 1789 2092
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We believe that the carrying value of our net accounts receivable approximates fair value The inputs into these fair

value estimates reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the inputs are considered to be

Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures See

Note

Inventories

Inventories consist of the following

November 24 November 26
2012 2011

Wholesale finished goods 33110 26873

Work in process 273 222

Raw materials and supplies 8586 5660
Retail merchandise 23938 20504
Total inventories on first-in first-out method 65907 53259
LIFO adjustment 6902 6955
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory 1089 1175

57916 45129

We source significant amount of our wholesale product from other countries During 2012 2011 and 2010 purchases
from our two largest vendors located in China and Vietnam were $23416 $24996 and $24229 respectively

We estimate an inventory reserve for excess quantities and obsolete items based on specific identification and historical

write-offs taking into account future demand market conditions and the respective valuations at LIFO The need for

these reserves is primarily driven by the normal product life cycle As products mature and sales volumes decline we
rationalize our product offerings to respond to consumer tastes and keep our product lines fresh If actual demand or

market conditions in the future are less favorable than those estimated additional inventory write-downs may be

required In determining reserves we calculate separate reserves on our wholesale and retail inventories Our wholesale

inventories tend to carry the majority of the reserves for excess quantities and obsolete inventory due to the nature of our

distribution model These wholesale reserves primarily represent design and/or style obsolescence Typically product is

not shipped to our retail warehouses until consumer has ordered and paid deposit for the product We do not typically

hold retail inventory for stock purposes Consequently floor sample inventory and inventory for delivery to customers

account for the majority of our inventory at retail Retail reserves are based on accessory and clearance floor sample

inventory in our stores and any inventory that is not associated with specific customer order in our retail warehouses

Activity in the reserves for excess quantities and obsolete inventory by segment are as follows

Wholesale Retail

Segment Segment Total

BalanceatNovember272010 1519 209 1728

Additions charged to expense 688 272 960

Write-offs 1220 293 1513
Balance at November 26 2011 987 188 1175
Additions charged to expense 1334 443 1777

Write-offs 1606 257 1863
BalanceatNovember242012 715 374 1089
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Notes Receivable

Our notes receivable included in other long-term assets in our consolidated balance sheets consist of the following

November 24 November 26

2012 2011

Notes receivable 4775 6017

Allowance for doubtful accounts and discounts on notes receivable 4139 4140

Notes receivable net 636 877

Less current portion of notes receivable 35 75

Long term notes receivable 601 1802

Our notes receivable which bear interest at rates ranging from 2% to 6% consist primarily of amounts due from current

or former licensees from loans made by the Company to help licensees fund their operations Approximately 54% and

43% of our notes receivable represent conversions of past due accounts receivable at November 24 2012 and November

26 2011 respectively We have discontinued these conversions and have no plans to resume this practice Interest

income on the notes receivable which is included in other income loss net was as follows

2012 2011 2010

Interest income 85 129 463

The initial carrying value of the notes receivable was determined using present value techniques which consider the fair

market rate of interest based on the licensees risk profile and estimated cash flows to be received The estimated fair

value of our notes receivable portfolio approximates the cartying value of the notes at November 24 2012 and

November 26 2011 The inputs into these fair value calculations reflect our market assumptions and are not

observable Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC Topic

820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures See Note

Substantially all of our notes receivable comprise single portfolio segment of financing receivables consisting of notes

receivable from current and former licensees These notes receivable are evaluated in three classes those due from

current licensees those due from former licensees which are secured by real estate and those due from former licensees

which are unsecured We periodically examine these notes receivable for evidence of impairment

With respect to current licensees we consider factors such as licensee capitalization projected operating performance

the viability of the market in which the licensee operates and the licensees operating history including our cash receipts

from the licensee licensee sales and any underlying collateral At November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 all notes

due from current licensees were fully reserved and interest income on those notes for the 2012 2011 and 2010 fiscal

years was recognized only on cash basis

Our evaluation of former licensees is primarily based upon payment history and an evaluation of the underlying

collateral After considering these factors should we believe that all or portion of the expected cash flows attributable

to the note receivable will not be received we record an impairment charge on the note by estimating future cash flows

and discounting them at the effective interest rate At November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 the carrying amount

of notes receivable from former licensees net of reserves and discounts was $583 and $1682 One note due from

former licensee was collected in full during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 The remaining note is secured by second

mortgage lien on real estate

Any difference between the estimated discounted cash flows and the carrying value of these notes is recorded as an

increase to the allowance for doubtful accounts Notes receivable are charged off if they are deemed to be uncollectible

with no recoverable collateral value Each note is evaluated individually using the criteria described above as applicable

to its respective class
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Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts and discounts was as follows

These notes receivable as well as our accounts receivable are generally secured by the filing of
security statements in

accordance with the Uniform Commercial Code and/or real estate owned by the maker of the note and in some cases
personal guarantees by our licensees

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following

Land

Buildings and leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

November 24 November 26
2012 2011

11926 10750

71207 66113

65024 66961

148157 143824

91533 93878

56624 49946

Balance beginning of the
year

Additions charged credited to expense
Write-offs

Amortization of discounts

Balance end of the year

2012 2011

4140 6748

4712

7292
28

4139 4140

Depreciation expense for property and equipment was $5127 $4837 and $4917 in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010
respectively and is

primarily included in our selling general and administrative expenses related to our retail segmentThe net book value of
property and equipment utilized by Company-owned stores at November 24 2012 and November

26 2011 was $44620 and $39317 respectively
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Financial Instruments Investments and Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable notes receivable investment securities

cost and equity
method investments accounts payable and long-term debt Because of their short maturities the carrying

amounts of cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate
fair value Our cost and

equity method investments generally
involve entities for which it is not practical to determine fair values

Investments

Prior to November 24 2012 our investments consisted of portfolio
of marketable securities and our investment in the

Fortress Value Recovery Fund LLC Fortress During the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2012 we liquidated our entire

portfolio of marketable securities resulting in net gain of $3 13 which is included in income from investments in our

accompanying consolidated statement of operations
for the year

ended November 24 2012 Our marketable securities

had been classified as available-for-sale and were marked to market and recorded at their fair value We measure the fair

value of our marketable securities in accordance with ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Our

available-for-sale securities at November 26 2011 included in other current assets in our accompanying consolidated

balance sheet were as follows

Cost Gross Unrealized Market

Value

Bond mutual funds

Government agency obligations

US Treasury Obligations

Basis Gains Losses

1175 149 1320

908 38 946

648 26 673

2731 213 2939

Prior to the liquidation
of our available for sale securities unrealized holding gains and losses net of the related income

tax effect had been excluded from income and were reported as other comprehensive income in stockholders equity At

November 26 2011 accumulated other comprehensive loss in our consolidated balance sheet included unrealized

holding gains net of tax of $236 Realized gains and losses from securities classified as available-for-sale were

determined using the specific identification method for ascertaining the cost of securities sold

The realized earnings from our marketable securities portfolio
include realized gains and losses based upon specific

identification and dividend and interest income Realized earnings were $453 $163 and $2272 for fiscal 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively
Realized earnings for the year ended November 24 2012 include $208 of gains previously

recorded in other comprehensive income These amounts are recorded in income loss from investments in our

consolidated statements of operations

Our investment in Fortress has been valued at fair value primarily based on the net asset values which are determined by

the fund manager less discount for illiquidity Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in

the fair value hierarchy in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures At November 26 2011 the fair value of

Fortress was $806 and is included in other long-term assets in our accompanying consolidated balance sheet Due to

significant
declines in net asset values during the first quarter of fiscal 2012 the highly illiquid nature of the investment

and the high degree of uncertainty regarding our ability to recover our investment in the foreseeable future we have

fully impaired the carrying amount of this investment resulting in charge of $806 during the
year

ended November 24

2012 which is reported as other than temporary impairment of investments in the consolidated statement of operations
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The Company accounts for items measured at fair value in accordance with ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosures ASC 820s valuation techniques are based on observable and unobservable inputs Observable inputs
reflect readily obtainable data from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions
ASC 820 classifies these inputs into the following hierarchy

Level Inputs Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level Inputs Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value
drivers are observable

Level Inputs Instruments with primarily unobservable value drivers

All of our fair value measurements are based upon Level inputs with our investment in Fortress having been the only
asset measured at fair value on recurring basis

The table below provides reconciliation of all assets measured at fair value on recurring basis which use level three or
significant unobservable inputs for the period of November 26 2011 to November 24 2012

Balance at November 26 2011

Total gains losses included in earnings related to change in underlying net assets

Balance November 24 2012

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Level Inputs

806

806

The carrying values and approximate fair values of financial instruments as of November 24 2012 and November 26
2011 were as follows

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable net

Notes receivable net

Investments including marketable securities

45566

15755

636

45566

15755

636

69601

14756

1877

2939

Assets

November 24 2012 November 26 2011

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

value value value value

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Real estate notes payable

Lease/loan guarantee reserves

22405

3294
347

69601

14756

1877

2939

18821

3864

508

22405

3668

347

18821

3804

508
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Income from the Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act

During the year ended November 24 2012 the U.S Customs and Border Protection Customs made distribution to

us of $9010 representing our share of the final distribution of duties that have been withheld by Customs under the

Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act of 2000 CDSOA We have received annual distributions in past years

under the CDSOA as result of our support of an antidumping petition on imports of wooden bedroom furniture from

China such distributions having been recognized in income during the fourth quarter
of each fiscal year when our annual

share was determined Income from such distributions recognized during fiscal 2011 and 2010 was $765 and $488

respectively Certain manufacturers who did not support the antidumping petition Non-Supporting Producers filed

actions in the United States Court of International Trade challenging the CDSOAs support requirement and seeking to

share in the distributions As result Customs held back portion of those distributions the Holdback pending

resolution of the Non-Supporting Producers claims The Court of International Trade dismissed all of the actions of the

Non-Supporting Producers who appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit the Court of

Appeals While the Court of Appeals denied the Non-Supporting Producers request for an injunction to block the final

distribution of the Holdback and allowed Customs to distribute the funds in April of 2012 the appeal is still pending

before the court Should the Court of Appeals reverse the decisions of the United States Court of International Trade

which ordered the release of the final distribution it is possible that Customs may seek to have us return all or portion

of our share of the distribution

10 Licensee Acquisitions and Goodwill

As we continually monitor business relationships with our licensees we may determine from time to time that it is in our

best interest to acquire licensees operations in order to mitigate certain risks associated with the poor performance or

potential failure of licensee Such risks include loss of receivables or underlying collateral potential impairment of the

value of our investments in real estate used by licensee or exposure to contingent liabilities under lease guarantees and

potential harm to our market share and brand integrity within licensees market In addition we are sometimes

approached by our licensees to acquire all or certain stores operated by the licensee We evaluate such opportunities

considering among other things the viability of the market and our participation in the store real estate

During fiscal 2012 we acquired one store located in Knoxville Tennessee and two stores in the Orange County

California market In each case our licensees desired to exit those markets The acquisition price for the Knoxville store

was $673 funded through the exchange of $485 in cash and $188 in existing accounts receivable for the net assets

acquired from the licensee plus recognized goodwill of $375 The acquisition price for the two Orange County stores

was $1468 funded through the exchange of $64 in cash and $1404 in existing accounts receivable for the net assets

acquired plus recognized goodwill of $921

During fiscal 2011 we acquired nine retail stores operated by licensees in Nevada Virginia Ohio Kentucky and

Connecticut These stores were acquired pursuant to strict foreclosure and settlement agreements on the underlying

assets subject to the terms of our security agreements with the licensees These acquisitions were funded through the

exchange of existing accounts receivable for the net assets acquired
from the licensee

During fiscal 2010 we acquired eleven retail stores operated by eight licensees in Maryland Missouri Illinois New

York Alabama Mississippi California Delaware and North Carolina Nine stores were acquired pursuant to strict

foreclosure and settlement agreements on the underlying assets subject to the terms of our security agreements
with the

licensees One store was acquired from licensee following its request for buyout where we already owned the real

estate Another acquired location had been previously closed and liquidated by the former licensee
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Our acquisitions were accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations The following table

summarizes the net assets acquired and consideration given in the store acquisitions

2012 2011 2010

Net assets acquired

Inventory 1480 3618 3319

Property and equipmentlother 592 1293 3113
Goodwill 1296 435

Customer deposits and other accrued expenses 1227 2613 3738

Total net assets acquired 2141 2298 3129

Consideration given

Accounts receivable 1592 2298 2751

Cash 549 378

Total consideration 2141 2298 3129

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were measured at fair value in accordance with ASC 805 Acquired

inventory is valued at expected retail sales price less an allowance for direct selling costs and profit thereon Acquired

property and equipment are valued based upon our estimate of replacement cost less an allowance for
age

and condition

at the time of acquisition Customer deposits and accrued expenses are expected to be settled at face value within short

period following acquisition therefore face value is assumed to approximate fair value The inputs into these fair value

calculations reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level

as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures See Note

The pro forma impact of the acquisitions on current and prior periods is not presented as we believe it is impractical to

do so We were not able to compile what we believed to be complete accurate and reliable accounting information to

use as basis for pro forma presentations without an unreasonable effort Net sales and operating losses generated by

these stores subsequent to their acquisition for the
year

in which they were acquired were as follows

2012 2011 2010

Net sales 1646 11264 16507

Operating losses 62 874 1972

In connection with both the Knoxville and Orange County market store acquisitions we recognized $1296 of goodwill

primarily associated with the strength of the local market and the general health of the stores at the time of acquisition

The carrying value of our goodwill which is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets by segment and the activity for fiscal 2012 and 2011 is as follows

Wholesale Retail Total

BalanceasofNovember272010 276 159 435

Goodwill from store acquisitions

Impairment charge

Balance as of November 26 2011 276 159 435

Goodwill from store acquisitions 853 443 1296

Impairment charge

BalanceasofNovember242012 1129 602 1731
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We perform our annual goodwill impairment review as of the beginning of our fiscal fourth quarter No impairment

charges have been required since fiscal 2009

11 Unconsolidated Affiliated Companies

International Home Furnishings Center

On May 2011 we sold our 46.9% interest in International Home Furnishings Center Inc IHFC to International

Market Centers L.P IMC Consideration received the balance of our investment in JHFC at the time of sale and

the resulting gain from the sale are as follows

Gain on sale of affiliate

Consideration received

Cash 69152

Tax escrow receivable 13

Indemnification escrow receivable 4695

Investment in IMC 1000

Total consideration received 76260

Investment in IHFC

Distributions in excess of affiliate earnings 9282

Gain on sale of affiliate 85542

Included in other current assets in the accompanying balance sheet at November 26 2011 these funds were

released to us during the first quarter of fiscal 2012

$2348 included in other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at November 24 2012 and

November 26 2011 with the remainder included in other assets

Included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at November 24 2012 and November 26

2011

$4695 of proceeds was placed in escrow to indemnifi the purchaser with respect to various contingencies On

December 19 2012 we received $2348 for the release of half of this escrow with the remainder provided it is not used

for contingencies being due for release to us during 2014 Currently we have no reason to believe that any obligations

will arise out of such contingencies and therefore expect that the escrowed funds along with earnings thereon will be

released to us in their entirety as scheduled Also in connection with the sale we acquired minority equity stake in

IMC in exchange for $1000 IMC is majority owned by funds managed by Bain Capital Partners and subsidiary of

certain investment funds managed by Oaktree Capital Management L.P Our investment in IMC is accounted for using

the cost method as we do not have significant influence over IMC

IHFC owned and leased out floor space in showroom facility in High Point North Carolina Prior to the sale of our

investment in IHFC we accounted for the investment using the equity method since we did not maintain operating

control of IHFC We recorded income and received dividends from IHFC as follows

2012 2011 2010

Earnings recognized 1832 4535

Dividends received 3756 937
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Summarized financial information for IHFC for 2011 and 2010 is as follows

2011 2010
Current assets

22575
Non-current assets

43892
Current liabilities

13163
Long-term liabilities

105526
Revenues

19955 39518
Net income

3470 9680

No balance sheet information is reported as of November 26 2011 as we no longer have any ownership
interest in IHFC and IFIFC no longer exists as stand-alone legal entity Revenues and net income are
reported for the five month period ended May 2011

The complete financial statements of IHFC are included in our annual report on Form 10-K

Zenith Freight Lines LLC

We own 49% of Zenith Freight Lines LLC Zenith which provides domestic transportation and warehousing
services primarily to furniture manufacturers and distributors and also provides home delivery services to furniture
retailers We have contracted with Zenith to provide for substantially all of our domestic freight transportation and
warehousing needs for the wholesale business In addition Zenith provides home delivery services for several of our
Company-owned retail stores Our investment in Zenith was $6484 at November 24 2012 and $6137 at November 262011 and is recorded in other long-term assets During the second quarter of 2011 we made an additional cash
investment of $980 which represented our 49% share of total $2000 equity contribution to Zenith to partially fund its

acquisition of warehouse
facility We paid Zenith approximately $25317 $23665 and $20667 for freight expenseand logistical services in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively At November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 we owed

Zenith $2547 and $2114 respectively for services rendered to us We believe the transactions with Zenith are at
current market rates We recorded the following earnings losses in income from unconsolidated affiliated companies
net in our consolidated statements of operations

2012 2011 2010

Earnings recognized 347 165

12 Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision benefit are as follows

2012 2011 2010

Current

Federal
1611 3947 10

State 487 676 196

Deferred

Increase decrease in valuation allowance 18704 17464 2962
Federal 2458 14934 2195
State 423 2316 767

Total 14699 4409 206

The income tax provision for fiscal 2011 includes benefit of $6341 resulting from the utilization of Federal net
operating loss carryforwards
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reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective income tax rate as percentage
of income

before income taxes is as follows

2012 2011 2010

Statutory federal income tax rate
35.0% 35.0% 34.0%

Dividends received deduction
1.8 71.6

Change in income tax valuation allowance 155.6 29.2 134.2

Change in income tax reserves 3.3 0.1 13.2

State income tax net of federal benefit 1.5 3.4 20.1

Other
0.1 4.6

Effective income tax rate 122.3% 7.3% 9.3%

The income tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards
which give rise to significant portions of the

deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are as follows

November 24 November 26

2012 2011

Deferred income tax assets

Trade accounts receivable
688 804

Inventories
1946 2036

Property and equipment
1688 3749

Notes receivable
1592 1592

Retirement benefits
5547 5162

Federal net operating loss and credit carryforwards
134

State net operating loss carryforwards
2309 2376

Unrealized holding loss
1069 912

Lease termination accruals
1005 1676

Other
2580 2707

Gross deferred income tax assets
18424 21148

Valuation allowance
908 19612

Total deferred income tax assets
17516 1536

Deferred income tax liabilities

Unrealized gains from affiliates net
78 125

Prepaid expenses and other
121 169

Unrealized holding gains net
81

Total deferred income tax liabilities
199 375

Net deferred income tax assets
17317 1161
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Due to the losses incurred prior to fiscal 2011 we were in cumulative loss position for the three years preceding fiscal

2011 which is considered significant negative evidence that is difficult to overcome on more likely than not standard

through objectively verifiable data While our long-term financial outlook remained positive we concluded that our

ability to rely on our long-term outlook and forecasts as to future taxable income was limited due to uncertainty created

by the weight of the negative evidence As result we previously recorded valuation allowance on certain of the

deferred tax assets In fiscal 2011 due to the gain recognized on the sale of our interest in IHFC we were able to utilize

net operating loss canyforwards and credits to significantly offset the taxable gain resulting in significant reduction of

the valuation allowances However as the gain on the sale of IHFC did not represent source of recurring future taxable

income we continued to record valuation allowance against substantially all of our deferred tax assets as of November

26 2011 Due to our positive earnings during fiscal 2012 and the absence of any significant negative evidence to the

contrary we have concluded that we can rely on our positive long-term outlook and forecasts as to future taxable income

in evaluating our ability to realize our deferred tax assets Accordingly the reserve against the majority of our deferred

tax assets was removed in fiscal 2012 resulting in credit to income of $18704 or $1.70 and $1.69 per basic and

diluted share respectively which is included in our net income tax benefit for the year The remaining valuation

allowance of $908 is primarily related to state net operating loss carryforwards for which it is currently considered to be

more likely than not that they will not be utilized prior to their expiration

The following table represents summary of the valuation allowances against deferred tax assets

2012 2011 2010

Balance beginning of the year 19612 36806 33003

Additions charged to expense 2962

Deductions reducing expense 18704 17464
Additions deductions recorded as component of other

comprehensive income loss 270 841

Balance end of the year 908 19612 36806

We have state net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future taxable state income of $29059 which expire

in varying amounts between 2013 and 2030 Realization is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income prior to

expiration of the loss carryforwards

Net income taxes paid net refunds received during 2012 2011 and 2010 were $2010 $3651 and $1582
respectively

As of November 24 2012 the
gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was approximately $1228 exclusive of interest

and penalties Of this balance if we were to prevail on all unrecognized tax benefits recorded approximately $175

would benefit the effective tax rate As of November 26 2011 the
gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was

approximately $1502 exclusive of interest and penalties Of this balance if we were to prevail on all unrecognized tax

benefits recorded approximately $440 would benefit the effective tax rate We regularly evaluate assess and adjust the

related liabilities in light of changing facts and circumstances which could cause the effective tax rate to fluctuate from

period to period

The following table summarizes the activity related to our gross unrecognized tax benefits

2012 2011

Balance beginning of the year 1502 1565

Gross increases 10 183

Gross decreases primarily due to the expiration of statutes 284 246

Balance end of the year 1228 1502
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We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense During fiscal 2012

2011 and 2010 we recognized $63 $67 and $112 of interest expense expense recovery and $57 $46 and $30 of

penalty expense recovery respectively related to the unrecognized benefits noted above in our consolidated statements

of operations At November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 the consolidated balance sheets include accrued interest

of $164 and $226 and penalties of $40 and $97 respectively due to unrecognized tax benefits

Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Companys federal and state tax positions and in the determination of

its tax provision Despite our belief that the liability for unrecognized tax benefits is adequate it is often difficult to

predict the final outcome or the timing of the resolution of any particular tax matter We may adjust these liabilities as

relevant circumstances evolve such as guidance from the relevant tax authority or resolution of issues in the courts

These adjustments are recognized as component of income tax expense in the period in which they are identified The

Company also cannot predict when or if any other future tax payments related to these tax positions may occur

We remain subject to examination for tax years 2009 through 2011 for all of our major tax jurisdictions

13 Real Estate Notes Payable and Bank Credit Facility

The real estate notes payable and bank debt are summarized as follows

November 24 November 26

2012 2011

Real estate notes payable 3294 3864

Less

Current portion of real estate notes payable 241 202
3053 3662

Real Estate Notes Payable

Certain of our retail real estate properties have been financed through commercial mortgages with an interest rate of

6.73% These mortgages are collateralized by the respective properties with net book values totaling approximately

$6397 and $6558 at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively The current portion of these mortgages

$241 and $202 as of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively has been included in other accrued

liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets The long-term portion $3053 and $3662 as of November

24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively is presented as real estate notes payable in the consolidated balance

sheets During fiscal 2011 we entered into Discounted Payoff Agreements DPO5 with the lenders on three

mortgages which were subsequently paid off during the year Under the terms of these DPOs the remaining balance

owed was reduced resulting in $1305 gain on the settlement of these mortgages This gain is included in other loss

net in our consolidated statements of operations

The fair value of these mortgages was $3668 and $3804 at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011

respectively In determining the fair value we utilized current market interest rates for similar instruments The inputs

into these fair value calculations reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the inputs are

considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and

Disclosures See Note

Maturities of real estate notes payable are as follows

Fiscal 2013 241

Fiscal 2014 258

Fiscal 2015 276

Fiscal 2016 295

Fiscal20l7 315

Thereafter 1909

3294
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Bank Credit Facility

On December 2011 we entered into new credit agreement with our bank which extended $3000 line of credit

which is used primarily to back our outstanding letters of credit This credit facility contained covenants requiring us to

maintain certain key financial ratios however there is no requirement to pledge assets as collateral We were in

compliance with all covenants under the agreement at November 24 2012

On December 18 2012 we entered into new credit facility with our bank extending us line of credit of up to

$15000 This new line is secured by our accounts receivable and inventory The new facility contains certain covenants

requiring us to maintain certain key financial ratios We are in compliance with all covenants under the new agreement

and expect to remain in compliance for the foreseeable future

At November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 we had $1966 and $2318 respectively outstanding under standby

letters of credit leaving availability under the then existing line of$l034 and $682 respectively

Total interest paid including bank and mortgage debt during fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 was $294 $895 and $1830

respectively

14 Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan

We have an unfunded Supplemental Retirement Income Plan the Supplemental Plan that covers one current and

certain former executives Upon retirement the Supplemental Plan provides for lifetime monthly payments in an

amount equal to 65% of the participants final average compensation as defined in the Supplemental Plan which is

reduced by certain social security benefits to be received and other benefits provided by us The Supplemental Plan also

provides death benefit that is calculated as prior to retirement death which
pays

the beneficiary 50% of final

average
annual compensation for period of 120 months or post-retirement death which pays the beneficiary 200%

of final average compensation in single payment We own life insurance policies with current net death benefit of

$4244 on these executives and expect to substantially fund this death benefit through the proceeds received upon the

death of the executive Funding for the remaining cash flows is expected to be provided through operations There are no

benefits payable as result of termination of employment for any reason other than death or retirement other than

change of control provision which provides for the immediate vesting and payment of the retirement benefit under the

Supplemental Plan in the event of an employment termination resulting from change of control
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Summarized information for the plan measured as of the end of each
year presented is as follows

2012 2011

Change in Benefit Obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 9326 8866
Service cost 54 47

Interest cost 376 420

Actuarial losses 709 662

Benefits paid 660 669

Projected benefit obligation at end of year 9805 9326

Accumulated Benefit Obligation 9342 9102

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

Current liabilities 843 866

Noncurrent liabilities 8962 8460

9805 9326

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income

Transition obligation 255 297

Actuarial loss 1732 1034

Net amount recognized 1987 1331

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and accumulated other

comprehensive income 1139 1129

2012 2011 2010

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost

Service cost 54 47 44

Interest cost 376 420 422

Amortization of transition obligation 42 42 42

Amortization of other loss 11

Net periodic pension cost 483 509 508

Assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost

Discount rate 4.25% 5.00% 5.25%

Increase in future compensation levels 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Estimated Future Benefit Payments with mortality

Fiscal 2013 843

Fiscal 2014 879

Fiscal 2015 807

Fiscal 2016 770

Fiscal 2017 732

Fiscal 2018 through 2022 3261
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Deferred Compensation Plan

We have an unfunded Deferred Compensation Plan that covers one current and certain former executives and provides
for voluntary deferral of compensation This plan has been frozen with no additional participants or benefits permitted
We recognized expense of $312 $332 and $376 in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively associated with the
plan Our liability under this plan was $2615 and $2766 as of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011
respectively and is reflected in post employment benefit obligations

Defined Contribution Plan

We have qualified defined contribution plan Employee Savings/Retirement Plan that covers substantially all

employees who elect to participate and have fulfilled the necessary service requirements Employee contributions to the
Plan are matched at the rate of 10% of up to 8% of

gross pay regardless of
years of service Expense for employer

matching contributions was $175 during fiscal 2012 During fiscal 2011 and 2010 employer matching contributions
were suspended and no expense was incurred

15 Capital Stock and Stock Compensation

We account for our stock-based employee and director compensation plans in accordance with ASC 718 Compensation
Stock Compensation ASC 718 requires recognition of the cost of employee services received in exchange for an

award of equity instruments in the financial statements over the period the employee is required to perform the services
in exchange for the award presumptively the vesting period which we recognize on straight-line basis Compensation
expense related to restricted stock and stock options included in selling general and administrative expenses in our
consolidated statements of operations for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 was as follows

2012 2011 2010

636 426$ 376

Stock Option Plans

In 1997 we adopted an Employee Stock Plan the 1997 Plan and reserved for issuance 950000 shares of common
stock An additional 500000 shares of common stock were authorized for issuance in 2000 In addition the terms of the
1997 Plan allow for the re-issuance of any stock options which have been forfeited before being exercised Options
granted under the 1997 Plan may be for such terms and exercised at such times as determined by the Organization
Compensation and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors Vesting periods typically range from one to three

years There are no shares available for grant under the 1997 Plan at November 24 2012 however up to 500000 shares
associated with outstanding grants under the 1997 may become available for

grant under the 2010 Plan see below

In 2005 we adopted Non-Employee Directors Stock Incentive Plan the Incentive Plan and reserved 100000 shares
of common stock for

grant The Incentive Plan authorized incentive awards in the form of restricted stock or stock

grants All Directors of the Company who are not full-time employees of the Company are eligible to receive incentive
awards under the Incentive Plan There were no shares available for grant under the Incentive Plan at November 24
2012 and 10087 available at November 26 2011
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On April 14 2010 our shareholders approved the Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated 2010 Stock Incentive Plan

the 2010 Plan All present and future non-employee directors key employees and outside consultants for the

Company are eligible to receive incentive awards under the 2010 Plan Our Organization Compensation and

Nominating Committee the Compensation Committee selects eligible key employees and outside consultants to

receive awards under the 2010 Plan in its discretion Our Board of Directors or any committee designated by the Board

of Directors selects eligible non-employee directors to receive awards under the 2010 Plan in its discretion Five hundred

thousand 500000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance under the 2010 Plan In addition up to 500000

shares that are represented by outstanding awards under the 1997 Employee Stock Plan which are forfeited expire or are

canceled after the effective date of the 2010 Plan will be added to the reserve and may be used for new awards under the

2010 Plan Participants may receive the following types of incentive awards under the 2010 Plan stock options stock

appreciation rights payment shares restricted stock restricted stock units and performance shares Stock options may be

incentive stock options or non-qualified
stock options Stock appreciation rights may be granted in tandem with stock

options or as freestanding award Non-employee directors and outside consultants are eligible to receive restricted

stock and restricted stock units only We expect to issue new common stock upon the exercise of options

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model The

risk free rate is based on the U.S Treasury rate for the expected life at the time of grant volatility is based on the

average long-term implied volatilities of peer companies the expected life is based on the estimated average of the life

of options using the simplified method and forfeitures are estimated on the date of grant based on certain historical

data We utilize the simplified method to determine the expected life of our options due to insufficient exercise activity

during recent years as basis from which to estimate future exercise patterns During fiscal 2011 and 2010 our

Compensation Committee authorized the issuance of 91000 and 172000 stock options respectively from the 2010 Plan

to certain of our key employees The stock options vest ratably over four-year period and have 10-year
contractual

terms The following table sets forth the weighted average fair value of options granted during 2011 and 2010 and the

weighted average assumptions used for such grants there were no grants made in 2012

2011 2010

Weighted average fair value of options on grant date $4.19 $2.55

Expected life of options in years
6.25 6.25

Risk-free interest rate
2.19% 2.49% 2.5%

Expected volatility
60.0% 60.0%

Dividend yield
0.0% 1.5% 0.0%

Changes in the outstanding options under our plans during the year ended November 24 2012 were as follows

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Number of Price

Shares Per Share

Outstanding at November 26 2011 1075464 13.95

Granted

Exercised
87400 6.59

Forfeited/Expired
202964 14.79

Outstanding at November 24 2012 785100 14.55

Exercisable at November 24 2012 630850 16.66
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Changes in the non-vested options under our plans during the
year ended November 24 2012 were as follows

Weighted

Average

Grant

Date Fair

Number of Value

Shares Per Share

Non-vested options outstanding at November 26 2011 220000 5.90

Granted

Vested 65750 5.65

Forfeited/Expired

Non-vested options outstanding at November 24 2012 154250 6.00

Unrecognized compensation cost related to these non-vested options at November 24 2012 is $422 expected to be

recognized over approximately two year period

Additional information regarding our outstanding stock options at November 24 2012 is as follows

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Contractual Weighted Weighted

Life Average Average

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Years Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

3.23 $6.45 102350 7.6 4.38 16350 4.38

6.45 $9.67 72250 8.6 8.02 4000 8.02

9.68 $12.90 138000 4.8 10.60 138000 10.60

12.91 $16.13 67500 3.9 14.89 67500 14.89

16.14 $19.35 150000 3.6 16.96 150000 16.96

19.36 $22.58 255000 1.3 21.12 255000 21.12

785100 630850

Aggregate intrinsic value 1025 215

Additional information regarding activity in our stock options during fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 is as follows

2012 2011 2010

Total intrinsic value of options exercised 530 74

Total fair value of options vested 371 110 242

Total cash received from the exercise of options 536 81
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The following restricted stock awards were granted during fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010

Share Value

Restricted at Grant Restriction

Grant Shares Date Period

Date Granted Per Share Years

Grantsduringfiscal20l0 May32010 17528 5.99

July 142010 43000 4.38

Grants during fiscal 2011 March 2011 4000 8.15

May22011 11760 8.93

July 13 2011 4200 8.02

July 132011 75000 8.02

Grants during fiscal 2012 May 12012 11184 10.73

July 13 2012 1398 11.69

At November 24 2012 non-vested restricted stock grants totaling 138782 shares remain outstanding Unrecognized

compensation cost related to these non-vested restricted shares at November 24 2012 is $439 expected to be recognized

over approximately two and one-half year period

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2000 we adopted and implemented an Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP that allows eligible employees to

purchase limited number of shares of our stock at 85% of market value Under the ESPP we sold 42211 39618 and

43730 shares to employees in fiscal 2012 2012 and 2010 respectively which resulted in an immaterial amount of

compensation expense
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16 Restructuring asset impairment and other charges

The following table summarizes the restructuring asset impairment charges and other unusual items by year

2012 2011 2010

Restructuring and asset impairment charges

Asset impairment charges related to Company-owned retail

store closures 123 1156

Asset impairment charges demolition costs associated with

closed plants
588 1312

Other 32

Total restructuring and asset impairment charges
711 2500

Lease exit costs

Lease exit costs related to Company-owned retail store closures 228 1221

Charge for modification of existing Company-owned retail

store lease 1500

Changes in estimates related to previously closed Company-

owned retail stores 131 1007

Total lease exit costs 359 3728

Licensee debt cancellation charges 6447

Total charges related to restructuring asset impairment lease exit

costs and debt cancellation included in loss from operations 1070 12675

Total restructuring and asset impairment charges by segment are as follows

2012 2011 2010

Wholesale 719 8653

Retail 351 4022

1070 12675

The following table summarizes the activity related to our accrued lease exit costs

2012 2011

Balance beginning of the year 4357 2847

Provisions associated with corporate store and retail office closures 228 2721

Provisions associated with licensee store closings 661

Provisions made to adjust previous estimates 111 1560

Payments on unexpired leases 2232 2048

Payment to terminate lease commitment 1500
Accretion of interest on obligations

150 116

Balance end of the year 2614 4357

Current portion included in other accrued liabilities 1609 1756

Long-term portion included in other long-term liabilities 1005 2601

2614 4357
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Fiscal 2012

Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges

During fiscal 2012 we incurred costs of $203 associated with the demolition of previously closed manufacturing

facility in Bassett Virginia non-cash charges of $385 associated with the write-down of previously closed

manufacturing facility in Mt Airy North Carolina and $123 associated with the write off of abandoned leasehold

improvements following the relocation of retail store near Richmond Virginia

Lease Exit Costs

During fiscal 2012 we incurred non-cash charges of $228 for lease exit costs associated with the relocation of retail

store near Richmond Virginia as well as $131 of non-cash charges to reflect reduced estimates of recoverable lease

costs at several previously closed retail locations

Fiscal 2011

Restructuring and Asset Impairment Charges

During fiscal 2011 we recorded asset impairment charges of $2500 These charges included costs of $318 for the

demolition of previously closed facility in Bassett Virginia and $32 associated with the relocation of our retail store in

Manchester Missouri We also incurred non-cash charges which included $966 for the write-off of leasehold

improvements related to the closure of six retail locations in Albuquerque New Mexico Bear Delaware Bel Air

Maryland Carol Stream Illinois Frederick Maryland and Spanish Fort Alabama $566 for the additional write-down

of previously closed manufacturing facility in Mt Airy North Carolina $428 for the additional write-down of the

previously closed manufacturing facility in Bassett Virginia and $190 for the write-off of leasehold improvements and

other assets associated with the relocation of our retail store in Manchester Missouri Total non-cash impairment

charges described above for the year ended November 26 2011 were $2150 The write-downs of the previously closed

manufacturing facilities are based on our estimates of their fair values The inputs into these fair value estimates reflect

our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the

fair value hierarchy in ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures See Note

Lease Exit Costs

During fiscal 2011 we recorded charges of $3728 for lease exit costs and lease modifications which included non-cash

charges of $1221 for lease exit costs related to the closure of retail stores in Albuquerque New Mexico Bel Air and

Frederick Maryland and previously closed location in Lewisville Texas non-cash charges of $1007 to reflect

reduced estimates of recoverable lease costs at four previously closed retail locations and charge of $1500 for cash

payment made for the modification of an existing lease at one of our Company-owned retail store locations

Licensee Debt Cancellation Charges

During fiscal 2011 we gained significant liquidity as result of the sale of our investment in IHFC see Note 11 This

liquidity event enabled us to become more opportunistic in managing our relationships with our licensees and therefore

accelerate certain licensees ability to rebuild their businesses after several years of extremely difficult industry

conditions As such during fiscal 2011 we cancelled certain debts of what we consider to be key licensees in select

markets While the debts cancelled were considered to be collectible over time we believe that rather than requiring

repayment of these obligations we will realize greater long-term benefit by the cancellation of these debts In

exchange for relieving the debts of these licensees and thus strengthening their respective financial positions we believe

these licensees will be in much better position to reinvest in all aspects of their store operations new product offerings

personnel advertising building appeal etc which will ultimately lead to increased sales and profitability of the Bassett

brand As result of this debt cancellation we incurred charge for fiscal 2011 of $6447
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In addition to the charges discussed above affecting loss from operations during fiscal 2011 other income loss net for

the year ended November 26 2011 includes non-cash charges of $4790 for asset impairments and lease termination

costs associated with our retail real estate investments including asset impairment charges of $2106 to write down idle

retail locations in Henderson Nevada and Chesterfield Virginia to appraised values $1847 to write off certain tenant

improvements deemed to be unrecoverable $661 related to lease termination costs for closed licensee store and $176

related to adjustments of previous estimates The write-downs of the retail assets are based on our estimates of their fair

values The inputs into these fair value estimates reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently

the inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC Topic 820 Fair Value

Measurements and Disclosures See Note

Fiscal 2010

There were no restructuring charges or other significant non-recurring items were included in our loss from operations

17 Contingencies

We are involved in various claims and actions including environmental matters which arise in the normal course of

business Although the final outcome of these matters cannot be determined based on the facts presently known it is our

opinion that the final resolution of these matters will not have material adverse effect on our financial position or future

results of operations

In 2009 our former vendor Colonial Trading Inc Colonial filed lawsuit against us alleging among other things

breach of contract by the Company after we cancelled orders for cribs following product recalls We filed counterclaims

for breach of contract and warranty On August 2012 jury returned verdict in favor of Colonial and in October

2012 judgment was entered in the amount of $1437 Colonials motion for attorneys fees is pending Both Bassett and

Colonial have appealed with Bassett seeking new trial for damages for breach of express warranty among other

things and Colonial seeking among other things to treble its breach of contract damages We currently have sufficient

reserves to cover the judgment amount

See also note regarding claims which could possibly result in the return of all or portion of our share of the CDSOA
final distribution

18 Leases Lease Guarantees and Loan Guarantees

Leases

We lease land and buildings under operating leases that are used in the operation of our Company-owned retail stores as

well as in the operation of independent licensee BHF stores Our decision to exercise renewal options is primarily

dependent on the level of business conducted at the location and the profitability thereof Some store leases contain

contingent rental provisions based upon sales volume Additionally we lease showroom space from IMC and from its

predecessor IHFC which is priced at what we believe to be market rate Lease terms range
from one to 15 years

and

generally have renewal options of between five and 15 years The following schedule shows future minimum lease

payments under non-cancelable operating leases having remaining terms in excess of one year as of November 24 2012

Fiscal 2013 18358

Fiscal 2014 14550

Fiscal2OlS 11983

Fiscal 2016 9015
Fiscal 2017 6393

Thereafter 12501

72800

Lease expense was $17123 $16406 and $16575 for 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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In addition to subleasing certain of these properties we own retail real estate which we in turn lease to licensee operators

of BHF stores We also own real estate for closed stores which we lease to non-licensees The following schedule shows

minimum future rental income related to pass-through rental expense on subleased property as well as rental income on

real estate owned by Bassett excluding subleases based on percentage of sales

Fiscal 2013 3364

Fiscal 2014 2794

Fiscal 2015 2141

Fiscal 2016 1018

Fiscal 2017 636

Thereafter 347

10300

Real estate rental income loss net of
expense including lease costs depreciation insurance and taxes related to

licensee stores and other investment real estate was $468 in 2012 $285 in 2011 and $429 in 2010 and is reflected in

other expense net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

Guarantees

As part of the strategy for our store program we have guaranteed certain lease obligations of licensee operators Lease

guarantees range from one to ten years We were contingently liable under licensee lease obligation guarantees in the

amount of $2007 and $2515 at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 respectively

In the event of default by an independent dealer under the guaranteed lease we believe that the risk of loss is mitigated

through combination of options that include but are not limited to arranging for replacement dealer liquidating the

collateral and pursuing payment under the personal guarantees of the independent dealer The proceeds of the above

options are estimated to cover the maximum amount of our future payments under the guarantee obligations net of

reserves The fair value of guarantees at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 were $347 and $508 respectively

and are recorded in accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets The inputs into this fair value estimate reflect our market assumptions and are not observable Consequently the

inputs are considered to be Level as specified in the fair value hierarchy in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and

Disclosures See Note

19 Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per share

2012 2011 2010

Numerator

Net income loss 26713 55342 2002

Denominator

Denominator for basic income loss per share weighted average

shares 10992017 11437291 11459257

Effect of dilutive securities 103394 106879

Denominator for diluted income loss per share weighted

average shares and assumed conversions 11095411 11544170 11459257

Basic income loss per share

Net income loss per share basic 2.43 4.84 0.17

Diluted income loss per share

Net income loss per share diluted 2.41 4.79 0.17
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Options to purchase 622500 924464 and 1009514 shares of common stock in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of including the

options in the computation would have been anti-dilutive

20 Segment Information

We have strategically aligned our business into three reportable segments as defined in ASC 280 Segment Reporting

and as described below

Wholesale The wholesale home furnishings segment is involved principally in the design manufacture

sourcing sale and distribution of furniture products to network of Bassett stores licensee-owned stores and

Company-owned retail stores and independent furniture retailers Our wholesale segment includes our wood

and upholstery operations as well as all corporate selling general and administrative expenses including those

corporate expenses related to both Company- and licensee-owned stores

Retail Company-owned Stores Our retail segment consists of Company-owned stores and includes the

revenues expenses assets and liabilities including real estate and capital expenditures directly related to these

stores

Investments and Real Estate Our investments/real estate segment consists of our marketable securities

investments distributions in excess of affiliate earnings IHFC and retail real estate related to licensee stores

Although this segment does not have operating earnings income or loss from the segment is included in other

income loss net in our consolidated statements of operations Our equity investment in IHFC is not included

in the identifiable assets of this segment since it had negative book value at November 26 2011 and was

therefore included in the long-term liabilities section of our consolidated balance sheet Our entire investment in

IHFC was sold during the second quarter of 2011 See Note 11 for further discussion of IHFC

Inter-company net sales elimination represents the elimination of wholesale sales to our Company-owned stores Inter

company income elimination includes the embedded wholesale profit in the Company-owned store inventory that has

not been realized These profits will be recorded when merchandise is delivered to the retail consumer The inter

company income elimination also includes rent paid by our retail stores occupying Company-owned real estate

55



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

In thousands except share and
per

share data

The following table presents segment information for each of the last three fiscal years

2012 2011 2010

Net Sales

Wholesale 185187 177372 176255

Retail 171633 147961 122241

Inter-company elimination 87148 72125 63242

Consolidated 269672 253208 235254

Income loss from Operations

Wholesale 7500 4394 2431

Retail 2067 4495 7387
Inter-company elimination 717 942 269

Restructuring and asset impairment charges

Wholesale 588 1311
Retail 123 1189

Licensee debt cancellation charges 6447
Lease exit costs 359 3728

Consolidated income loss from operations 5080 20622 4687

Depreciation and Amortization

Wholesale 1171 1246 1670

Retail 3760 3421 3095

Investments/real estate 542 847 1201

Consolidated 5473 5514 5966

Capital Expenditures

Wholesale 3092 690 515

Retail 5898 3478 1498

Investments/real estate 10

Consolidated 9000 4168 2013

Identifiable Assets

Wholesale 145861 142361 95957

Retail 68583 60811 58736

Investments/real estate 12736 20002 42624

Consolidated 227180 223174 197317

breakdown of wholesale sales by product category for each of the last three fiscal years
is provided below

2012 2011 2010

Wood 43% 44% 44%

Upholstery 57% 56% 56%

100% 100% 100%
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21 Quarterly Results of Operations unaudited

2012

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Net sales 60968 67454 64438 76812

Grossprofit 31671 35661 33818 40172

Net income loss 596 8042 2371 16896

Basic earnings loss per share 0.05 0.72 0.22 1.57

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.05 0.71 0.21 1.55

2011

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Net sales 64264 66261 59417 63266

Gross profit 31848 33197 29251 33270

Net income loss 8255 62546 417 633

Basic earnings loss per share 0.72 5.43 0.04 0.06

Diluted earnings loss per
share 0.72 5.39 0.04 0.06

All quarters presented above for 2012 and 2011 consist of 13 week fiscal periods

Includes restructuring and asset impairment charges of $236 and lease exit costs of $228 see Note 16 for further

details Also includes $806 charge for other than temporary impairment to our investment in Fortress see Note

for further details

Includes $9010 of income from the final CDSOA distribution see Note for further details Also includes

restructuring and asset impairment charges of $475 and lease exit costs of $131 see Note 16 for further details

Also includes $1592 of tax benefit from partial release of deferred tax asset valuation reserves see Note 12 for

further information

Includes $1205 of tax benefit from partial release of deferred tax asset valuation reserves see Note 12 for further

information

Includes $15907 of tax benefit from release of deferred tax asset valuation reserves see Note 12 for further

information

Includes restructuring and asset impairment charges of $879 and lease exit costs of $884 see Note 16 for further

details

Includes $85542 gain on sale of affiliate see Note 11 for further details regarding the sale of our investment in

IHFC Also includes licensee debt cancellation charges of $6447 restructuring and asset impairment charges of

$1080 and lease exit costs of $2844 see Note 16 for further details

Includes restructuring and asset impairment charges of$123 see Note 16 for further details

Includes $765 of income associated with the Continued Dumping Subsidy Offset Act See Note for further

details Also includes $418 of asset impairment and restructuring charges see Note 16 for further details
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below for the fiscal years
indicated were derived from our audited consolidated

financial statements The information should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements

including the notes thereto and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations appearing elsewhere in this report

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Net sales

Gross profit

Operating income loss
Gain on sale of affiliate

Other income loss net

Income loss before income taxes

Income tax expense benefit

Net income loss
Diluted earnings loss per

share

Cash dividends declared

Cash dividends per share

Total assets

Long-term debt

Current ratio

Book value per share

Weighted average
number of shares

269672 253208

141322 127566

5080 l$ 20622l$
85542

6934 3$ 51693$
12014 59751

146994$ 4409 4$
26713 55342

2.41 4.79

15920 6757

1.45 0.60

227180 223174

3053 3662

2.52to1 2.7ltol

14.51 13.44

11095411 11544170

See note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to restructuring and asset impairment charges

recorded in 2012 and 2011

See note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to the gain resulting from the sale of our interest in

IHFC on May 2011

See note to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to funds received from the Continued Dumping and

Subsidy Offset Act in 2012 2011 and 2010

See note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to the effects of changes in our valuation

allowance on deferred tax assets during fiscal 2012 and 2011

235254 232722 288298

112688 102840 114899

4687 21575 18576
-s

24793 2878 4834
2208 24453 23410

206 1754 16945

2002 22699 40355

0.17 l.99$ 3.46

-s 17464

-$ 1.50

197317 216229 245042

4295 31953 40346

1.48to1 2.42to1 2.34tol

9.20 9.63 11.40
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For the Year Ended November 27 2010

Reserve deducted from assets to which it applies

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Notes receivable valuation reserves

Lease/Loan guarantee reserves

Restructuring reserve

Lease exit costs

Income tax valuation allowance

For the Year Ended November 26 2011

Reserve deducted from assets to which it applies

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Notes receivable valuation reserves

Lease/Loan guarantee reserves

Lease exit costs

Income tax valuation allowance

For the Year Ended November 24 2012

Reserve deducted from assets to which it applies

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Notes receivable valuation reserves

Lease/Loan guarantee reserves

Balance End

Other of Period

7366

6748

2304

2847

36806

SCHEDULE II

ANALYSIS OF VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
in thousands

Balance

Beginning of

Period

Additions

Charged to

Cost and

Expenses

Deductions

10757 4671 8062

8950 1825 4027

3366 1407 2469

535$ 535$

3499 836 1488

33003 2962 841

7366 8778 14052 2092

6748 4684 7292 4140

2304 1282 3078 508

2847 5058 3548 4357

36806 17464 270 19612

2092 377 680 1789

4140 4139

508 41 120 347

Lease exit costs 4357 489 2232 2614

Income tax valuation allowance 19612 18704 908

Deductions are for the purpose for which the reserve was created Deductions from the income tax valuation

allowance for the year ended November 26 2011 represent the reduction in income tax expense resulting from

the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards realized against the taxable gain on the sale of IHFC

Represents the change in reserve recorded as part of accumulated other comprehensive income loss
Deduction for 2012 due to the reduction of the majority of our valuation allowance resulting in net tax benefit

for the year
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STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Presented below is line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total stockholder return

on the Companys Common Stock against the cumulative total return of the Standard Poors 500 Index and the

Companys peer group The Companys peer group consists of Chromcraft Revington Inc Ethan Allen Interiors Inc

Flexsteel Industries Inc Furniture Brands International Inc Haverty Furniture Companies Inc Hooker Furniture

Corporation La-Z Boy Incorporated and Stanley Furniture Company Inc This graph assumes that $100 was invested

on November 24 2007 in the Companys Common Stock the SP Index and the two peer groups
and that any

dividends paid were invested
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Managements Report of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

As of the end of the period covered by this Aimual Report on Form 10-K our principal executive officer and principal

financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures Disclosure Controls
Disclosure Controls as defined in Rule 3a- 15e of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange

Act are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be disclosed in our

reports filed under the Exchange Act such as this Annual Report is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms Disclosure Controls are

also designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to our

management including the CEO and CFO as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure Our

management including the CEO and CFO does not expect that our Disclosure Controls will prevent all error and all

fraud control system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute

assurance that the objectives of the control system are met Further the design of control system must reflect the fact

that there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs Because of the

inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues

and instances of fraud if any within the company have been detected These inherent limitations include the realities

that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake The

design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and

there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions

Based upon their controls evaluation our CEO and CFO have concluded that our Disclosure Controls are effective at

reasonable assurance level

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting in accordance with

Exchange Act Rule l3a-l5 With the participation of our CEO and CFO our management conducted an evaluation of

the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of November 24 2012 based on the criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation management concluded that our internal control over financial

reporting was effective as of November 24 2012 based on those criteria control system no matter how well

conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system

are met Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute

assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any within the Company have been detected

Ernst Young LLP the Companys independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on

the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Bassett Furniture Industries Inc

Bassett Virginia

February 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and

Subsidiaries as of November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations

comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

November 24 2012 Our audits also included Financial Statement Schedule II Analysis of Valuation and Qualifying

Accounts These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits The financial

statements of International Home Furnishings Center Inc corporation in which the Company had 47% interest until

it was sold on May 2011 for each of the two years
in the period ended November 26 2011 have been audited by

other auditors whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as

it relates to the amounts included for International Home Furnishings Center Inc is based solely on the report of the

other auditors In the consolidated financial statements the Companys investment in International Home Furnishings

Center Inc is stated at $7356000 at November 27 2010 In the consolidated financial statements the Companys

equity in the net income of International Home Furnishings Center Inc is stated at $1832000 and $4535000 for the

years ended November 26 2011 and November 27 2010

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion based on our audits and the report of other auditors the financial statements referred to above present

fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial position of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and

subsidiaries at November 24 2012 and November 26 2011 and the consolidated results of their operations and their

cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended November 24 2012 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in

relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth

therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of

November 24 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 2013 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

44i4

Raleigh North Carolina

February 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries

We have audited Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as

of November 24 2012 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Bassett Furniture Industries

Incorporated and subsidiaries management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such

other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis

for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of November 24 2012 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of Bassett Furniture Industries Incorporated and subsidiaries as of November

24 2012 and November 26 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income

stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 24 2012 of Bassett

Furniture Industries Incorporated and Subsidiaries and our report dated February 2013 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

ou7LLP
Raleigh North Carolina

February 42013
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

Internet Site

Our site on the Internet has been updated recently and is

filled with information about Bassett Furniture including

this annual report detailed financial information and

updates information about our home furnishings

products and dealer locator of Bassett stores and other

stores that feature Bassett products Visit us at

bassettfurniture.com

Forward Looking Statements
This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements

as defined in the Private Securities Litigation and Reform

Act of 1995 and within the meaning of Sections 27A of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1933 as amended and

Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended When used in this Annual Report the words

hope believe expect plan or planned intend

anticipate potential and similar expressions are

intended to identify forward-looking statements Readers

are cautioned against placing undue reliance on these

statements Such statements including but not limited to

those regarding increases in sales growth in the number

of Bassett stores improving gross margins growth in

earnings per share changes in capital structure the

operating performance of licensed Bassett stores and other

Company-owned stores are based upon managements

beliefs as well as assumptions made by and information

currently available to management and involve various

risks and uncertainties certain of which are beyond the

Companys control The Companys actual results could

differ materially from those expressed in any forward-

looking statement made by or on behalf of the

Company

If the Company does not attain its goals its business and

results of operations might be adversely affected For

discussion of factors that may impair the Companys

ability
to achieve its goals please see the cautionary

statements in the Managements Discussion and Analysis

section of this Annual Report

Corporate Information and Investor Inquiries

Our annual report and proxy statement together

contain much of the information presented in the

Form 10-K report filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission Individuals who wish to receive the

Form 10-K or other corporate literature should visit our

website at bassettfurniture.com or contact Investor Relations

at 276.629.6000

Transfer Agent Stockholder Inquiries

Stockholders with inquiries relating to stockholder

records stock transfers change of ownership change of

address or dividend payments should write to

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

Operations Center

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn NY 11219

Toll free 800 937-5449

Local International 718 921-8124

Email info@amstock.com

Web site www.amstock.com

Annual Meeting
The Bassett Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be

held Wednesday March 2013 at 1000 am EST at the

Companys headquarters in Bassett Va

Market and Dividend Information

Bassetts common stock trades on the NASDAQ national

market system under the symbol BSET We had approximately

900 registered stockholders on November 24 2012 The

range of per share amounts for the high and low market

prices and dividends declared for the last two fiscal years

are listed below

Quarter 2012 2011 2012 2011

MARKET PRICES OF

COMMON STOCK

DIVIDENDS

DECLARED

HIGH LOW

First

Second

Third

Fourth

$8.17

10.87

12.25

13.00

HIGH

$7.80

9.03

8.56

8.05

7.38

8.15

9.08

10.60

LOW

$3.98

6.73

7.18

6.62

$0.05

0.05

0.05

1.30

0.03

0.03

0.54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAUL FULTON

Chairman of the Board

Bassett Furniture Industries Inc

ROBERT El SPILMAN JR
President and Chief Executive Officer

Bassett Furniture Industries Inc

PETER BROWN M.D
Partner

Virginia Surgical Associates
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Guy and Larry Restaurants LLC
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DALE POND
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Institute
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WILLIAM WARDEN JR
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JAY HERVEY
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MATTHEW JOHNSON
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KENA LENARD
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RENEE LOPER
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PETER MORRISON

Vice President Retail Marketing

LOUIS MOSSOTTI JR
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THOMAS PRATO
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DAVID WALSH
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EDWARD WHITE
Vice President Human Resources
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